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Transforming into
Greater Heights

As we never stop striving to create
a legacy of improved business, we
keep moving forward with more
transformation as a strategic that we
have implemented since 2015. With
over four decades of experience
in retail industry under our
belt, entering 2018 was a
propitious step for us
to build wider space
where people
from various
walks of
life,

especially the millennial generation,
can enjoy what today'’s lifestyle trend
has to offer.

Our giant leap to enhance our
transformation is by opening a
number of outlets with completely
different concept from the traditional
concept of our existing outlets. The
concept led to the birth of Ramayana
Prime that offers not only fashion
retail but also lifestyle products.

With the opening of Ramayana
Prime, furthermore, not only do we
offer fashion retail in our distinct
department stores, but also we
feature a remarkable range of
lifestyle products and services.

Stepping into a Ramayana
Prime is where you will

be greeted with a
delicious array
of F&B outlets,
and you
walk

further inside you will see more
lifestyle products and services
carrying branded names, including
entertainment venues such as Kids
Zone and XXI cinema.

Ramayana Prime City Plaza Jatinegara
is one example where you can see
how such a transformation has
taken us to scale greater heights. As
we keep climbing higher, we have
added 3 (three) Ramayana Prime
outlets during 2018, which are in
Plaza Cibubur, Sleman, and Madiun.
We also prepared other Ramayana
Prime that will soon open their doors
to the public.

In addition to featuring the modern
outlet concept, Ramayana has also
penetrated e-commerce platforms
such as Lazada, Tokopedia, and
Shopee.



Growing with
the Millennials

'O UR VALUES

We have built a presence in the world of fashion retail for over four decades.
Indeed, such a long journey has built our reputation with good name. No
less importantis our long-established relationship with suppliers, employees
and investors. As a means of appreciation loyalty to customers, we include
transformation as one of the values that allow us to give what the customers
need, not only in the fashion retail segment but also other products and
services that set the current lifestyle trends.

'OUR VISION

"To be seen as the mass market solution in terms
of fashion merchandising”.

'OUR MISSION

“To present an appealing and entertaining
lifestyle shopping experience, guaranteeing
good quality, great style, and affordable price”.




M| Highlights of the Year
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Commendable Achievement

The Company booked a 44%
growth rate of net profit from the

Hip and Happening

Ramayana K-Pop Dance Cover Competition
2018 - a fun day where Ramayana invited youths
including millennial generation to take partin a

joyful event that gave way to a festive mood.

Member Card

The launch of Ramayana Member Card App, a
great platform to find out the newest products
and attracting discounts and promos available at
all Ramayana merchants. The total membership of
card members as of the end of 2018 numbered
to 5,536,963 users.

sale performance result.

> Youlube

Ramayana
Department $ture

Number 1 on YouTube

Google Indonesia placed Ramayana on the top
among the ten most popular ads on YouTube. The
Ramadhan Ramayana: #KerenLahirBatin has had
over 16 million viewers with 11,000 comments.

Ramayana on Shopee

Online shoppers welcomed Ramayana, which has
collaborated with online shopping platform Shopee
since April 2018. In celebrating the collaboration,
Ramayana offered up to 80% discount for fashion
enthusiasts seeking the best buy at the Ramayana
Official Shop on Shopee, from April 26-May 2, 2018.




Achieving Tremendous Growth

Double-digit growth in fashion business
and rationalization in supermarket,
resulting an increase in net profit at 44%.

40 Years and Counting

. UYRar-aye In commemorating its 40th
mive Ga

; . Anniversary, Ramayana held a big
celebration at Trans Studio Bandung
on March 6, 2018. The event saw the
attendance of around 2,000 invitees
from Ramayana'’s big family.

e £

New Face

Ramayana named
the renowned actress
Nagita Slavina as
the Company's new
ambassador. With her
presence, Ramayana .
launched the exclusive Cashless Convenience
collection called
: Ramayana has collaborated with e-wallet
Chapter9, available "
: DANA, an e-money platform that facilitates
only on Shopee online ! :
S the payment convenience. Making purchase
‘ in every Ramayana store now gets easier with
e-wallet DANA.




Financial Highlights

Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Outright Sales 4,805,123 4,786,508 5,092,752 4,788,667 5,131,375
Consignment Sales 3,733,611 3,359,349 3,141,892 2,997,527 2,810,340
Cost of Consignment Sales 2,799,181 2,523,129 2,377,607 2,253,190 2,080,367
Cost of Outright Sales 3,232,948 3,410,434 3,654,539 3,537,000 3,813,511
Gross Profit 2,506,605 2,212,294 2,202,498 1,996,004 2,047,837
Selling Expenses 425,171 379,456 408,190 385,212 399,364
General & Administrative Expenses 1,473,612 1,476,485 1,436,917 1,377,266 1,354,182
Other Income 18,421 20,432 15,345 19,420 4,939
Other Expenses 19,295 1 4,582 2,252 33
Income from Operation 606,948 376,784 368,154 250,694 299,197
Finance Income - Net 110,224 89,808 96,911 113,926 89,712
Income Before Income Tax 717,172 466,592 465,065 364,620 388,909
Income Tax Expense - Net 130,067 60,012 56,586 28,566 33,246
Income for the Year 587,105 406,580 408,479 336,054 355,663
Earnings per Share (Rp) 87.33 60.48 60.02 47.64 50.12
Statement of Financial Position

Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,950,775 751,901 603,750 844,253 625,373
Time Deposits 464,656 1,279,068 1,156,855 984,004 1,026,105
Accounts Receivable 37,775 57,122 51,726 33,612 23,306
Short-term Investments 86,068 127,509 68,148 483 36,387
Inventories 859,767 740,993 834,400 823,909 808,569
Prepaid Expenses 6,878 6,323 7,149 6,155 1,215
Other Current Assets 151,569 130,580 108,787 138,756 173,989
Total Current Assets 3,557,488 3,093,496 2,830,815 2,831,172 2,694,944
Fixed Assets - Net 1,164,225 1,235,256 1,279,282 1,333,227 1,375,402
Long-term Prepaid Rent 407,822 452,372 454,652 342,432 428,862
Security Deposits 31,706 30,602 29,241 28,369 30,116
Other Non-current Assets 81,806 80,196 53,019 39,704 36,599
Total Non-current Assets 1,685,559 1,798,426 1,816,194 1,743,732 1,870,979
Total Assets 5,243,047 4,891,922 4,647,009 4,574,904 4,565,923
Total Current Liabilities 1,093,095 1,048,640 1,008,981 960,890 967,544
Total Non-current Liabilities 322,487 348,937 300,629 280,210 272,699
Total Liabilities 1,415,582 1,397,577 1,309,610 1,241,100 1,240,243
Total Equity 3,827,465 3,494,345 3,337,329 3,333,804 3,325,680
Total Liabilities & Equity 5,243,047 4,891,922 4,647,009 4,574,904 4,565,923
Financial Ratios

Current Year Profit on Assets (%) 11.2% 8.3% 8.8% 7.3% 7.8%
Current Year Profit to Equity ( % ) 15.3% 11.6% 12.2% 10.1% 10.7%
Current Ratio ( x ) 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.9 2.8
Liabilities to Equity ( x ) 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Liabilities to Total Assets ( x ) 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3
Sales to Total Assets ( x ) 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7
Net Cash Position to Equity ( % ) 65.4% 61.8% 54.8% 54.9% 50.8%




Shareholding Info

As of December 31, the Company'’s shareholding info is as follows:

Rp10.1...

atau USD 695.8 million

'Ownership Structure
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® 55_88% PT Ramayana Makmur Sentosa
o 3_66% Paulus Tumewu
o 40_46% Free-Float

n’ayout Ratio

e 2014: 55% of 2013 net profit
e 2015: 54% of 2014 net profit
e 2016: 61 % of 2015 net profit
e 2017: 59% of 2016 net profit

e 2018: 66% of 2017 net profit



Board of Commissioners Report

Dear Shareholders,

With this occasion, | would like to
extend the warm wishes and earnest
greetings to all Ramayana associates,
including shareholders, bankers,
suppliers, employees and of course
our faithful customers. Despite being
seen as the start of ‘political years’
in Indonesia, which raised concerns
about the continued stability, 2018 is
also perceived as the transformation
year which opened opportunities for
retail industry to catch up with the
current trend. With this spirit, please
allow the Board of Commissioners
to convey Ramayana growth in this
Annual Report for the fiscal year 2018.

The Invest ASEAN Digital Report has
stated that the economy is currently
worth US$900 billion per annum.
By 2030, Indonesia is expected to
account for nearly 40% of the growth
among Southeast Asian countries.
The maturing Indonesian economy
also helps strengthen the country’s
position as Southeast Asia’s largest
market. Indonesia’s gross national
income per capita has increased
over 500% in a 17-year-period. This
means seeing stronger purchasing
power, especially among millennial
generation.

With continuous developments
happening in the country, the
Company also observes the revival
of consumer spending. Throughout
Indonesia, especially in Java, new
network of toll roads is being built
and new ways of transportation such
as the Jakarta MRT that is already
available to the public. Ramayana
also benefits from more affordable
and more efficient infrastructure.

Upgrading Market with Online
Trend

With our presence in the fashion retail
industry for over four decades, the

Company has taken a step forward
to embrace the new shopping
experience, attuning to the dynamic
millennials. Our transformation, which
we started in 2015, has also pay off.
Especially in 2018, we were really on
the fast track with better growth and
wider market penetration.

The opening of Ramayana Prime
in City Plaza Jatinegara marked
the enactment of “Unique Fashion
Solution” for the mass-market in
Indonesia. Ramayana Prime is not only
about department stores boasting
fashion retail, but also bringing
noteworthy assortment of lifestyle
products and services such as F&B
outlets and entertainment venues.

Through the implementation of a
better category management in all
Ramayana outlets, the Company
succeeded in achieving sales growth
target (top line) which increased by
20-25%.

So far, we have four Ramayana Primes
across the Java Island, and we, the
Board of Commissioners, have seen
the commandable achievements
of what the Board of Directors has
done in terms of innovating the new
concept to capture wider market.

Currently, Ramayana operates 119
stores in 54 major cities across
Indonesia with total gross selling
space of 994,441 square meters.
For transformation outlets, there are
25 outlets operating as of December
2018,and in 2019 is targeted as many
as 20 outlets will be transformed.

Well-educated citizens also tend to be
better consumers, understanding the
trade off between quality and price.
In this internet age, the Company has
discovered the younger, tech-savvy
consumers to be vastly concerned

with health, style, fashion and other
features compared to the generation
of their parents. It is deemed
necessary for the Company to pursue
a strategy to align with this society
transformation. It is only fitting for the
Company to also seek collaboration
with e-commerce platforms to join
today’s innovative shopping industry.

These transformation efforts are
proven to be rewarding as several
achievements in e-commerce and
digital industries are presented
to Ramayana in 2018. In May
2018, The Ramadhan Ramayana:
#KerenLahirBatin ad was honored by
YouTube Ads Leaderboard Awards.
The ad has had over 16 million
viewers with 11,000 comments on
YouTube. In its first year joining the
e-commerce business, Ramayana
had been presented with Special
Partner Brand Award 2018 by Shopee
Indonesia.

Another Rewarding Year for
Shareholders

Just like in the previous years, the
Board of Commissioners always
discusses with the Board of Directors
in appraising costs and dealing
effectively with under-performing
assets, in maintaining a stance of
prudence in line with ongoing
economic trends, both domestic and
global. The Board of Commissioners
has advised the Board of Directors to
stay on track with the transformation
as an engine that drives the Company.

The results were notable in 2018.
The Company total Sales in 2018
stood at Rp 8,539 billion, up from
Rp 8,146 billion recorded for the
same period in 2017. The Company
overall sales growth reached 4.8%
while sale performance result booked
a 44% growth rate of net profit. The
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Company also booked an increase of 13.3% in gross
profit at Rp 2,507 billion, compared to Rp 2,212 billion
booked in the previous year.

Based on the record of the Company’s successful
achievements, the Board of Commissioners would like
to recognize the achievements of the Board of Directors
and thank them for their commendable endeavor and
for theirimplementation of policy as determined by the
Board of Commissioners. The Directors have performed
exceptionally, under untried conditions, adapting to
changing tastes and market patterns.

In light of transforming the business into greater
heights, the Board of Commissioners looks forward
with anticipation to the expansion and modernization

of supermarket facilities in all stores, as well as growing
e-commerce retail stores. The Company intends to
maintain both offline and online presence in Indonesia'’s
retail industry because despite the growing familiarity
of online shopping convenience, many customers
still actually consider visiting a physical store to be an
irreplaceable activity.

At this point | would like to turn over the forum to the
President Director for his report, while sending sincere
thank you for valued shareholders, honorable partners,
employees and customers across Indonesia. Let us work
together in 2019 to make another satisfactory year for
PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa Tbk.

President Qommissioner







Board of Directors Report

For over four decades, Ramayana
has incessantly strived to create a
legacy in retail industry. Ramayana
was comfortable for many years as a
reliable, trustworthy, cost-conscious
source of durable, inexpensive
garments and other daily needs.
Last year, we strengthened our
transformation to present an
appealing and entertaining lifestyle
shopping experience both for our
valued customers as well as the
growing millennial market. The year
2018 was a journey for Ramayana,
and in this Annual Report, we
convey the story to shareholders,
relevant government authorities, all
stakeholders and the general public.

With the raising of middle class and
strengthening people’s purchasing
power, Ramayana revised its
relationship with today’s shopping
public through customer service.
That means taking a step forward to
reach outto younger customer base
through online shopping experience
and premium retails.

Shopping as a Fresh Lifestyle
Experience

Expanding its market to a new target
customer group, Ramayana created
two notable milestones in 2018. The
first and considering the Company's
breakthrough was upgrading
the offline retail market through
Ramayana Prime concept. For most of
the public, Ramayana is best-known
for its C to D market or middle-low
segment. The Company saw this as
a challenge to entice the young and
modern market who favors more
fashionable and attractive shopping
areas. This demand triggered the
birth of Ramayana Prime in Jatinegara,
a 25,906 sgm lifestyle center built on

1.1 hectares of land in East Jakarta.
On top of fashion retail, customers
may visit food outlets, specialty stores
as well as cinema and game center.

As of 2018, we have had four
Ramayana Primes, including the
one in Jatinegara. The others are in
Plaza Cibubur, Sleman City Hall, and
Plaza Lawu Madiun. We are targeting
to open five stores every year. This
includes expanding more Ramayana
Primes in our business development
plan, be it by revamping our existing
stores or by renting other places.

With our presence in a lifestyle
destination, we also generate rental
income, which we earn from tenants
including anchor tenants in Ramayana
Primes.

Aside from this, we have also entered
the online retail market through
e-commerce like Shopee, Tokopedia
and Lazada. Tapping into the
millennials with large discount and
official products, Ramayana also tag
along with modern-day celebrities
like Nagita Slavina to craft exclusive
fashion collections.

Moreover, the Company view
modern trend through activities as
well, hosting Ramayana K-Pop Dance
Cover Competition 2018, a fun day
where Ramayana invited youths
including millennial generation to
take part in a joyful event. This will
be the look of Ramayana in the future.

The launch of Ramayana Member
Card App marked another milestone
for the Company. This counts as
a step forward from the existing
loyalty program through physical
debit card introduced in the

previous year. This new program
has received a warm welcome from
our customers. Acknowledging the
familiarity of today’s consumer with
e-payment method, Ramayana has
also collaborated with e-wallet DANA
for a more convenient yet secure
payment.

Reaching Out with Corporate
Social Responsibility
Ramayana opened their first store
in 1978 on Jalan Sabang, Jakarta.
Later, Ramayana grew with more
stores opened across Indonesia
and has become one of the largest
department store operators in
Indonesia. Ramayana has shared its
history with Indonesia and will always
give back to those in need.

To maintain our business
sustainability, we carry out the
essence of the triple bottom concept
(Profit, Planet, People); taking into
account that Ramayana operates
119 stores in 54 major cities across
Indonesia including those affected
with recent natural disaster such as
Lampung and Banten.

The Company always feels the
obligation to respond to natural
disasters. In August, the Company
distributed donations valued at
nearly Rp 600 million to the victims
of earthquake in Lombok, West Nusa
Tenggara. Another aid, valued at Rp
1,171,266,592 was sent to the victims
of Palu and Dongala earthquake
and tsunami in October. The Rp 200
million donation for the community
development was channeled to help
communities in Anyer and Lampung.
Lastly, the Company also collaborated
with 13 Buddhist Viharas in Cikarang
and Karawang area to provide free
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medical treatment at Sariputra school, Cikarang, on
September 2, 2018 with total fund of Rp 961,431,300.-

Ramayana always looks into the neighborhood for
employment and realizes that our neighbors provide
us with sincere, hard-working workforces. We continue
to work and share with local people in areas around our
outlets, to demonstrate how we are a socially-conscious,
caring and valuable member of the Indonesian business
community.

Reporting Another Satisfactory Year

Let us, the Board of Directors, reports that operating
income for 2018 reached Rp 606.9 billion from Rp 376.8
billion in the previous year. While as of December 31,
2018, total assets stood at Rp 5,243 billion, an increase
as compared to Rp 4,892 billion booked in the previous
year.

The Board of Directors would like to report to the Board
of Commissioners that we have been able to implement
all assigned corporate and departmental strategies,

as well as monitoring execution of directives, ensuring
that the Company is fully compliant with corporate
governance regulations.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
emphasize that PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa, Tbk did
its best in a difficult environment, striving for improved
outcomes in 2019.

We wish to extend our appreciation to our esteemed
Board of Commissioners for its wise guidance throughout
the year. We also would like to thank all stakeholders,
shareholders, management, employees and business
partners, and valued customers for their continued
patience and faithful support during the year.

Itisimportant to bear in mind that the effort at a ‘business
transformation’ is a long-term strategy. We will pursuit
more accomplishment in 2019, expanding Ramayana
with optimism.

Agus Makmur

President Director
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a Nutshell

Dubbed one
of the largest
department store
operators in Indonesia,
Ramayana opened their first store
in 1978 on Jalan Sabang, Jakarta.
Named Ramayana Fashion Store, the
store mainly specialized in garment
and clothing, focusing on selling
quality goods at affordable price for
the low-income segment.

In 1985, Ramayana introduced fashion
apparels such as shoes, handbags
and accessories while expanding the
business in wider markets, not only in
Jakarta but also Bandung.

Ramayana has since 1985 become a
retail chain, operating 13 outlets and
employing a total of 2,500 workers.
They variety of products sold has also
become more varied, which include
household necessities, toys and
stationeries.

Later, Ramayana grew with more stores
opened across Indonesia and has
become one of the largest
department store
operators in

Indonesia.
With the
strong human
resources as well as sound
financial management, Ramayana
survived the economic crisis that hit
the country hard in 1998.

Indeed, the Company, which has
listed its shares on the Indonesia Stock
Exchange since 1996 has ever since
continued to record strong growth
and become the market leader in the
middle-low and lower retail segments.

Seeing people’s life and digital
technology are intertwined, Ramayana
in 2018 expanded its business with
the collaboration of renowned
e-commerce platforms: Lazada,
Tokopedia and Shopee. Despite the
growing number of netizens making
the most of the online shopping
convenience, we still see physical
store remains as a fun activity with
irreplaceable shopping enjoyment
that enhances the art of shopping
spree. For that reason, while we are
penetrating the e-commerce market,
we maintain and even improve the
presence of our stores throughout
the country.

Currently, Ramayana operates 119
stores in 54 major cities across
Indonesia with total gross selling
space of 994,441 square meters. For
years, Ramayana offers full range of
clothing, shoes and bag, toys and
stationery, as well as housewares and
supermarket. With the transformation
as a giant leap, Ramayana has
branched out its presence
in the market with
the opening of

Ramayana Prime, which boasts a
complete range of lifestyle products
including department stores and
the spaces rented to anchor tenants
carrying branded names.




Milestones

The first store was

established on Jalan

Sabang, Central
Jakarta.

Listed as a public
company, and PT
Ramayana Lestari
Sentosa Tbk in this
year operated 45
(fourty five) stores.

As the Company
expanded the
business, the first
store in Ujung
Pandang, Sulawesi
was launched and

later received positive

response from the
public.

Collaboration with
SPAR Netherlands.

371404d )\NVdV\IOZ)‘

The first store outside
of Jakarta was
opened in Bandung,
West Java, selling
accessories, shoes
and bags.

The first store outside
of Java, which is in

Bali, opened its doors
to the public.

Expansion of lines of
business with more
products such as
toys, stationery and
household appliances.
The same year, the
Company operated a
total of 13 stores and
employed 2,500 staff.

As the business grew,
Ramayana has 35
(thirty five) stores
known among the

public as a one-stop
shopping destination.

The first store
in Banjarmasin,
Kalimantan started its
operation.

The opening of the
first store in Bandar
Lampung, Sumatra.

Business expansion
as the Company
included electronic
products and fast food
restaurant.

Significant revamp for
design look, layout
dan display, as well

as collaboration with
celebrities.

The opening of the
first store in Ambon,
Maluku.

Going further to
Eastern Indonesia, the
first store in Papua was
opened.

Additional of 3
(three) Ramayana
Prime: Plaza Cibubur,
Sleman City Hall, and
Plaza Lawu Madiun,
with total of 4 (four)
Ramayana Prime as of
the end of the year.

Ramayana Prime in
City Plaza Jatinegara,
Jakarta opened its
doors, offering a
one-stop shopping
destination that
targets middle-class to
upper-class segments.
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Board of Commissioners Profile

Paulus Tumewu rresident Commissioner, Founder of Ramayana

Age: 66 years old; born in Ujung Pandang, Sulawesi in 1952
Nationality: Indonesia

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Work Experience: Since youth, he has taken part in retail activities by
helping his parents shop in Ujung Pandang (former name of Makassar). In
1978, he founded Ramayana by opening its first store on Jalan Sabang,
Jakarta.

P

. Iq bal commissioner

Age: 56 years old; born in Serang, West Java in 1962
Nationality: Indonesia

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Educational Background: He earned a Bachelor's Degree in Law from
the University of Indonesia in 1987.

Work Experience: He first joined the Company in 1989 as a Supervisor.
Then, he was promoted to be a store manager. In 1994, he was promoted
to be Operational Manager. Finally, in 1995, he joined the Company as
a Commissioner.

Pk

oh Boon Kim Independent Commissioner

Age: 71 years old; born in 1947

Nationality: Singaporean

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25, 2018.

Educational Background: He earned his Degree from the University
of Chicago Graduate School of Business.

Work Experience:

He has more than three decades of experience in the Asian retail industry.
In addition to his role as an Independent Commissioner, Mr. Koh has
served as the Company’s Senior Advisor since 1988.



s

5

elamat Independent Commissioner

L ¥

Age: 55 years old; born in Pematang Siantar in 1963.
Nationality: Indonesian

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 23,2014

Educational Background: He holds a Degree from Trisakti University.
Work Experience:

He has over 20 years of experience in Accounting and Finance, and has
worked in several public companies.

Pk

ismanto commissioner

Age: 58 years old; born in Majenang, Central Java.
Nationality: Indonesian

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Work Experience:

He joined the Company as a Senior Counter Head in 1980. After three
years, he was promoted to hold the position as Cashier Head and later
was in charge as a Store Manager. As Mr. Kismanto played a central role
in the Company'’s robust growth, he was appointed Regional Manager
in 1989. Later in 1993, he became Merchandise Controller in 1993,
wherein he was responsible for the entire Company network of stores.
In 1995 he was promoted as Director of Marketing and Merchandising.
In 2016, he joined the Board of Commissioners.




Board of Directors Profile

£

Pa

ane Melinda Tumewu vice President Director

gus Makmur Ppresident Director

Age: 60 years old; born in Ujung Pandang
(previously named Makassar), Sulawesi

Nationality: Indonesian

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Educational Background:
Holding a Degree from the Catholic University of Ujung Pandang.

Work Experience:

After earning his academic degree, Mr. Agus later and Mr. Paulus had a
joint effort managing Mr. Paulus’ growing retail business. Mr. Agus has
36 years of experience in the retail industry and currently supervises the
Company'’s daily operations.

Age: 35 years old; Born in Jakarta

Nationality: Indonesian

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Educational Background: She obtained a Bachelor's degree in Business
at Bobson University, United States of America.

Work Experience: She first joined Ramayana in the division of
merchandising and advertising sales promotion.In 2015, she was appointed
as General Merchandise Manager (GMM) and was also responsible for all
operations of the Company. At the Annual GMS 2018, she was appointed
as Vice President Director.

£

urya NtO Director

Nationality: Indonesian
Domicile: Jakarta

Age: 55 years old; born in Pangkal Pinang

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Educational Background: He earned a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting
from Trisakti University in 1987. He also graduated with honors from the
Professional Accounting Education Program at the University of Indonesia.

Work Experience:

He commenced his career at the respected firm Prasetio, Utomo & Partner.
He also held a senior management position with another retail firm for some
ten years, worked for two years as a Group Controller and four years as
Director of an electronics manufacturing company before joining Ramayana.



i i 'Gantang Nitipranatio pirector

Age: 62 years old; born in Magelang in 1956
Nationality: Indonesian

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Educational Background: He obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Economics from Atma Jaya University, Yogyakarta in 1981.

Work Experience:

He joined Ramayana as Head of Merchandising in 2007. Previously, he
developed a specialty store from 2004 to 2006, and had worked at Matahari
Dept. Store from 1984 to 2004.

D

M

uhammad Yani pirector

Age: 50 years old; born in Bima in 1968

Nationality: Indonesian

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25, 2018.

Educational Background: He graduated with a Bachelor of Law at
Hasanuddin University in 1990.

Work Experience:
He first joined Ramayana in 1995 as Human Resources Supervisor. In 2007,
Mr. Yani was appointed as Head of Human Resources Division, and officially
served as Director in 2016.

PH

alomoan Hutabarat pirector

Age: 52 years old; born in North Sumatra on April 22, 1966
Nationality: Indonesian

Domicile: Jakarta

Legal Basis of Appointment: GMS on May 25,2018

Educational Background: He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Law from
Indonesian Christian University (UKI).

Work Experience:

He joined Ramayana as Senior Operations Manager in 1992. Later, in
2011 he managed a retail business independently before rejoining the
Company as an Independent Director on May 23, 2014.
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Awards & Certifications

> Youlube

Ramayana
Depar_t_mmt_,-uﬁture

YouTube Ads Leaderboard

In May 2018, YouTube Ads Leaderboard Awards
honored Ramayana with an award in the category
of Ramadhan Special Mention 2017.

JUARA 1

s

Special Partner

Shopee Indonesia bestowed Ramayana with
Special Partner Brand Award 2018.




Ramayana Across
the Archipelago

I = S

C001 JI. Taman Mini | No.1, RT.3/RW.2, Pinang Ranti East Jakarta
2 RO2 Pulo Gadung Trade Center, JI. Raya Bekasi KM 21 Bekasi
3 RO6 JI. Pahlawan No.1000, BSD Serpong
4 RO8 JI. H. Agus Salim No. 34-38, Jakarta Central Jakarta
5 R10 JI. Pasar Palmerah Lt. 1 & 2, JI. Palmerah Barat No. 2, Jati Pulo West Jakarta
6 R11 JI. Raya Ragunan No. 113, Pasar Minggu South Jakarta
7 R12 JI. Pasar Baru No. 69, Pasar Baru Central Jakarta
8 R13 JI. Ps. Kramat Jati Lt. 1, JI. Raya Bogor No. 4 East Jakarta
9 R14 JI. Tanjung Duren Raya No.1, Pasar Kopro Lt. 2-3 West Jakarta
10 R15 JI. Dewi Sartika No. 1 Bogor Bogor
11 R20 JI. Ciputat Raya, Plaza Ciputat Raya Tangerang
12 R21 JI. Ir. H. Juanda, Pratama Plaza Bekasi
13 R22 JI. Raya Ragunan No.16, ex Terminal Pasar Minggu South Jakarta
14 R24 JI. Raya Pondok Gede, Jatihayu, Pondok Melati Bekasi
15 R25 JI. Surya Kencana No. 3, Bogor Bogor
16 R26 JI. Merdeka No.10, Cimone Jaya Tangerang
17 R29 JI. Kramat Jaya Raya, Tugu Koja, Tanjung Priok North Jakarta
18 R30 JI. Antasari No. 1, Plaza Mitra Banjarmasin
19 R31 JI. Daan Mogot No. 9, Tanah Tinggi, Kec. Tangerang Tangerang
20 R32 JI. Tebet Barat Dalam Raya No. 58-59, Pasar Tebet Lt. 2 South Jakarta
21 R33 JI. Yos Sudarso No. 30, Koja Plaza, Tanjung Priok North Jakarta
22 R34 JI. Margonda Raya, Plaza Depok Bogor
23 R35 JI. Raya Serang, Mal Cilegon Cilegon
24 R36 JI. Jend. A. Yani, Plaza Jambu Dua Bogor
25 R37 JI. Raya Cibitung Bekasi
26 R38 JI. 1 Gusti Ngurah Rai, Mall Citra Klender East Jakarta
27 R39 JI. Veteran, Ciwangi Bungursari, Sadang Purwakarta
28 R40 JI. Lingkar Luar Barat, Cengkareng Timur West Jakarta
29 R41 JI. Sutomo Kel. Pahlawan P. Siantar
30 R42 JI. Raya Bogor, Mall Graha Cijantung East Jakarta
31 R43 JI. Raya Jakarta-Bogor, Cibinong Bogor
32 R44 JI. Pondok Raya, Plaza Bintaro, Bintaro Tangerang
33 R45 JI. Sultan Saha, Beringin, Ps. Jambi Jambi
34 R46 JI. Dr. Muwardi Il, Pasar Muka Cianjur
35 R47 JI. Lapangan Tembak No. 8 Cibubur Bogor
36 R48 JI.R. Intan, Pasar Bawah, Tanjung Karang Lampung
37 R49 JI. HOS Cokroaminoto No. 13, Ciledug Tangerang
38 R50 JI. Andi Pettarani, Panakukang Mas Ujung Pandang
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40
41
42
43
44
45
46
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48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76

R52
R54
R55
R57
R58
R60
R61
R62
R63
R66
R67
R68
R70
R71
R74
R75
R77
R78
R79
R80
R81
R82
R83
R85
R86
R88
R89
R90
R%1
R93
R4
R96
R97
R98
R99
R100
R101

J

J

J

JI.

J

JI.

JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.

JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.

JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.

. Sukarno, Plaza Muara Rapak

Pasar Pangkal Pinang, Bangka
Letkol Iskandar, Kompleks llir Barat Permai

Pulau Irian, Karang Mumus

. Tanjung Pura, Benua Melayu Laut

Sisingamangaraja, Teladan Barat, Medan Kota

. Gajah Mada No. 3, Pasar Simpang 3

Lalamentik, Flobamora Mal
Iskandar Muda, Plasa Medan Baru
P. Antasari, Pasar Sentra Antasari

Pemuda Kel. Olo, Ramayana Plaza Andalas

. Tuparev Karawang Wetan, Nagasari

Altenatif, Cileungsi
Adiyaksa Panakukang Square Lt. 1
H. Juanda No. 1, Bogor Trade Mall

R.E Martadinata, Cikarang Kota

.Veteran No. 17, Kel Kota Baru

A.Yani. No. 1, Kel Benteng Pasar Atas
Jend. A Yani, Baturaja Timur, Baturaja Lama
Perintis Kemerdekaan No. 26, Makasar Town Square
Jend. Sudirman, Bintan Dumai Timur
Mulawarman, Bontang Baru

Raya Sesetan No. 122, Sesetan

Adi Sucipto, Tukang Kayu

Jenderal Sudirman, Duri Timur

Maharaja Indra Kel. Kerinci Timur

Jend. Sudirman, Labuhan Baru

Jend. Sudirman, Deli, Tj. Marulak Hilir
Jend. Sudirman, Cempedak

Raya Abepura, Kec. Jayapura Selatan
Latumenten No. 33, Season City

M. Yamin, Gunung Kelua

H. R. Subrantas KM 9, Tampan, Sidomulyo
Raya Padalarang, Kab. Bandung Barat
Panglima Sudirman, Kp. Dalem

Guntur, Kel. Pakuwon

Raya Plered, Weru Lor

Zaenal Abidin Pagar Alam, Mall Lampung

Balikpapan
Pangkal Pinang
Palembang
Samarinda
Pontianak
Medan
Tarakan
Kupang
Medan
Banjarmasin
Padang
Karawang
Bogor
Makassar
Bogor

Bekasi
Serang

Bukit Tinggi
Baturaja
Makassar
Dumai, Kep. Riau
Bontang, Kaltim
Bali
Banyuwangi
Duri

Kerinci

Paya Kumbuh
Tebing Tinggi
Kotabumi
Abepura
West Jakarta
Samarinda
Panam
Padalarang
Kediri

Garut
Cirebon

Lampung
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78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

R102
R103
R105
R106
R107
R109
R110
R111
R114
R119
R120
R121
R123
R124
R125
R126
R127
R128
R129
R130
R131
R132
RBO3
RBO5
RBO7
RBO9
RB10
RB11
RB12
RB13
RB14
RB16
RB17
RB20
RB21
RB22
RB23
RB26
RB27
RB28
RB29
RB30
RB31

JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.

Ji

JI.

Pasar Kebayoran Lama

Jend Ahmad Yani, Kel. Klademak

Raya Parung Bogor, Kab. Bogor

Raya Siliwangi Kamp. Sekarwangi, Cibadak

H. R. Lukman No. 3, Ciri Mekar Link. Kayu Manis

. Raya Teratai Putih, Duren Sawit

DR. Sutomo, Kel. Noyontaan Pekalongan

Maluku Mall City, JI. Sultan Hassanudin

JI.

Bogor Baru, Kel. Kedaung Jaya

Mall Dinoyo City Square, JI. MT Haryono

J

J

J

J

JI.

JIL

JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.

JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.
JI.

Slamet Riyadi No. 437, Laweyan, Solo

. Raya Tajur RT 02/02, Sindangsari, Bogor Timur

. Boulevard Kav. 9, Medan Satria, Bekasi

Raya Serang No. 19, RT001/RW01, Cikupa
Matraman Raya No.173-175, Jakarta Timur

Ir. H. Juanda No. 115, Bekasi Juncion

BSD Raya Utama, Tangerang (Q Big Mall)
Alternatif Cibubur Cileungsi KM. 2-3, Jawa Barat
H. M. Joyomartono Bulak Kapal, Bekasi Timur
Sultan Hamengkubuwono IX KM 25, Cakung
Magelang KM 9,6, Tridadi, Sleman

Pahlawan, Kartoharjo, Kota Madiun, Jawa Timur

Pemuda No. 2

.Tipar Gede No. 17

Pasuketan, Mal Cirebon, Lt. 1
Malioboro No. 124

Kusuma Bangsa, THR Mal Surabaya
Simpang Lima, Mal Citraland, Lt. 1
Rio No. 1, Cimahi Mekar

Merdeka Timur, Plaza Mataraman

. Taman Jayeng Romo, Jembatan Merah

. Gubernur Suryo, Plaza Multi Sarana

Jend. A. Yani 66-74

Diponegoro No. 103-Al

Komplek Jodoh Marina, Lubuk Baja Kota
Bungur Asih

Raya Krian, Kompleks Pasar Krian
Wiratno, Kp. Baru

Diponegoro No. 2 Sidokumpul

Simpang Tujuh

Jend. Sudirman No. 20, Daud Puri Klod

. Kawasan Komersil Muka Kuning

Bubutan No 1-7, BG Junction

South Jakarta
Sorong
Bogor
Sukabumi
Bogor
Jakarta
Pekalongan
Ambon
Bogor
Malang
Solo

Tajur
Bekasi
Tangerang
Jakarta
Bekasi
Tangerang
Cibubur
Bekasi
East Jakarta
Sleman
Madiun
Salatiga
Sukabumi
Cirebon
Jogyakarta
Surabaya
Semarang
Bandung
Malang
Surabaya
Gresik
Jogyakarta
Denpasar
Batam
Surabaya
Sidoarjo
Tanjung Pinang
Sidoarjo
Kudus
Denpasar
Batam

Surabaya




Ramayana Logistic Map

| and Shipping
e Sea Shipping via Tanjung Priok

= | and Shipping via Tanjung Perak

.

Human Capital

The Company sees human resources
as a crucial element of the Company's
performance growth. They indeed
constitute of one of the great assets
that drive the Company forward. As of
the end of 2018, Ramayana had 9,488
employees, a decrease compared to
2017 with 10,171.

The transformation step is not
only applied to the store but also
to all employees both in terms of
responsibility and capability. To make

the most of its human resources, the
Company continuously maintains the
quality of every employee by means
of enhancing their knowledge and
honing their skills through various
training sessions.

Training

We always develop our training
system in line with the goals of our
transformation, which is to prepare
our people to be able to contribute
more to penetrate more markets
across the archipelago. We routinely
conduct training once a month in
every store and five times in a year
at the head office.

Internship

Ramayana has internship program
for vocational school and university
students. The Company also offers

various job positions for those
with good performance during the
program. Throughout 2018, the
Company had 15,000 interns and
another 10,000 from 228 vocational
schools who study marketing.

r[: 27
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4

The chapteris
designed to help
shareholders and
stakeholders to
get a clear picture
of the Company'’s
business

and financial
performance.
This includes the
latest update of
the Company’s
current business
development and
what the future
holds.

Economic Overview
Indonesia’s economy remains strong
with a burgeoning middle class and
retail sector putting the country as
Southeast Asia’s largest market.
The world's largest archipelago is
poised to gain stronger purchasing
power, especially among millennial
generation.

According to The Invest ASEAN
Digital Report, Indonesia’s gross
national income per capita has grown
over 500% in a 17-year-period. The
report also says that the economy is
currently worth US$ 900 billion per
annum; and Indonesia is expected to
account for nearly 40% of the growth
among Southeast Asian countries by
2030.

Retail Market Overview

With stable economy and propitious
outlook, the retail environment in
Indonesia continues to evolve. Within
the urban areas, the trends have been
catalyzed particularly in the fashion
industry.

With the raising of middle class
and strengthening people’s
purchasing power, Ramayana has
correspondingly set a significant
milestone as the Company is currently
capturing broader market.

One step taken is by collaborating
with popular on-line platforms
Lazada, Tokopedia and Shopee.
Despite the growing number of
netizens making the most of the

on-line shopping convenience, the
world of retail still sees the majority
of people enjoy more of experiencing
physical shopping venues as having
a break from the hustle and bustle of
the busy life.

In corresponding with that, the
Company has taken a step forward
so as to strengthen its position
as one of the largest department
stores in Indonesia. Not only does
the Company offer fashion products
for middle-class and lower segments
(C to D), but the Company has also
taken a strategic transformation in
building new version of Ramayana
that captures higher-class segment
(Cto B). This has been demonstrated
by the opening of Ramayana Prime,
which offers a one-stop lifestyle and
shopping destination.

RAMAYANA PRIME

Alluring One-Stop Shopping &
Lifestyle Destination

It is undeniable that people are
demanding more and more shopping
excitement. In fact, malls around us
have met people’s needs, simply
not only about fulfilling their needs
of essential stuff. There has been
a change around the way of how
people go shopping. Instead, most
of us may spend so much time
not to purchase the essentials, but
also worth to note that the current
generation, especially millennials see
hangouts as part of their lifestyle. This



has triggered Ramayana to transform
into something completely different.

Ramayana, to the most of people,
is best-known for its C & D market
or mid-low segment, which is in
fact just attractive to certain people.
Ramayana sounds somewhat strange
for millennials who demand for
more fashionable and attractive
shopping area, not a dull and old-
fashioned shopping area. For that
reason, Ramayana has altered and
captured segmentation more widely,
especially to boast its presence with
more lifestyle products and services
to allure millennials. This is where the
birth of Ramayana Prime in City Plaza
Jakarta has added to the Company'’s
milestones.

Built on 1.1 hectares of land, with
a building area of 25,906 m2,
Ramayana Prime in Jatinegara boasts
the whole new shopping experience.
Customers are spoiled with various
fancy stores that are different
from Ramayana commonly being
perceived. Equipped with Cinema
XXI, food connection and specialty
store with renowned names such as
Ace Hardware, Starbucks Coffee, HP
Center, Shoe Mart, Sports Station and
playing ground Zone 2000, Ramayana
Prime truly has reckoned up so much
sense of amusement in their latest
one-stop shopping area.

Furthermore, Ramayana Prime takes
into account the MSMEs by adding
them into their shopping area.
Ramayana Prime employs around
98 (ninety-eight) workers, which are
prioritized to East Jakarta residents,
and collaborates with UMKM Market
Cooperatives so as to enhance

harmony in making the most of
opportunities available from micro
and small to large businesses.

By opening an outlet in class B mall,
Ramayana managed to target the B
segment market, so that sales after
Lebaran at Ramayana Prime did not
experience a significant decline. It
can be seen from the consignment
sales contribution in Ramayana Prime
are larger than the other Ramayana
outlets. Although the store area in
Ramayana Prime is only around 4,500
-5,000 sgm, the Company can use the
space more effectively and efficiently
with higher productivity targets

During 2018, 3 (three) Ramayana
Prime have been opened, located
in Cibubur, Sleman & Madiun, and
according to the Company's business
roadmap, more Ramayana Primes are
set to be opened in the near future
to satisfy the needs of the millennial
generation, many of whom see such
a shopping and lifestyle destination
as Ramayana Prime essential to fulfill
their lifestyle needs.

As of December 2018, there are 4
(four) fully operational Ramayana
Prime, namely Jatinegara City Plaza,

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA TBK

Cibubur Plaza, Sleman City Hall,
and Lawu Madiun Plaza with a total
number of 301 workers.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Staying on track with the
transformation as an engine that
drives the Company forward,
Ramayana has scaled greater heights
with its business expansion with the
opening of Ramayana Prime and
the collaboration with e-commerce
platforms while maintaining and
enhancing the growth of the existing
outlets across the archipelago.
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Sales

In 2018, the Company managed to
book total sales of Rp 8,539 billion,
up from Rp 8,146 billion recorded in
the previous year. The increase was
due to the outstanding performance
in both outright and consignment.
In 2018 outright sales stood at Rp
4,805 billion, an increase of 0.4%
from Rp 4,786 billion recorded in
2017. Meanwhile, consignment grew
11.1% in 2018.

The Company total revenue in 2018
stood at Rp 5,740 billion, up from Rp
5,623 billion.

Gross Profit

The Company booked an increase
of 13.3% in gross profit at Rp 2,507
billion, compared to Rp 2,212 billion
booked in the previous year.

The increase in gross profit was
attributed to tremendous growth in
fashion business and better gross
margin achievement.

Operating Expenses

This category includes Selling
Expenses, General & Administrative
Expenses, and Other Expenses.
Throughout 2018, the Company
recorded Rp 1,899 billion of its
operating expenses, an increase of
2.3%, from Rp 1,856 billion booked
in 2017.

The increase in operating expense
was due to renewal of existing
rental contract and upgrading and
renovation of the stores.

Income from Operations
Meanwhile, the Company’s income
from operations soared to Rp 606.9
billion from Rp 376.8 billion in th =e
previous year. The 61.1% increase
was due to tremendous growth in
fashion department, higher gross
margin, and better cost control.



Assets

As of December 31,2018, total assets
stood atRp 5,243 billion as compared
to Rp 4,892 billion booked in the
previous year. This achievement was
attributed to higher cash and cash
equivalent.

Liabilities

The Company recorded its total
liabilities at Rp 1,416 billion, up 1.3%
compared to the previous year's
figure of Rp 1,398 billion.

Equity

The Company'’s equity rose by 9.5%
to Rp 3,827 billion from Rp 3,494
billion booked in the previous year.

Dividends

The Annual General Shareholders
Meeting which was held in Mercure
Hotel, May 25, 2018 approved the
distribution of cash dividend of Rp
268.9 bilion or Rp 40 per share.
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Corporate
Governance

Good Corporate Governance
(GCG)

With the sustainability at the core
of what we do, the Company keeps
striving to improve the practice of
Good Corporate Governance (GCG).
The Company also consistently
executes its GCG practice in
accordance with high standards of
business conduct.

In implementing GCG principles, the
Company refers to the following 5
(five) GCG principles:
¢ Transparency
The Company transparently
provides accurate, clear, and other
relevant material information
about the Company'’s financial
report and business activities.

e Accountability
The Company always ensures that
all the decisions and actions are
held accountable.

¢ Responsibility
The Company carries out its
business activities in responsible
manner and in accordance
with the prevailing laws and
regulations.

¢ Independency
The Company is professionally
managed without any conflict of
interest and pressure from any
party which is not in accordance

with the prevailing laws and
regulations as well as sound
corporate principles.

e Fairness
The Company fulfills shareholders’
rights based on the prevailing
laws and regulations as well as
acting fairly and equally.

General Meeting of
Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders
(GMS) holds the highest authority
in the Company, representing the
interests of shareholders, which hold
all authorities not given to the Board
of Commissioners or the Board of
Directors.

GMS is held at least once a year
as a forum for the Company’s
Management and shareholders to
take important decisions relating to
business strategies and policies of a
company.

Annual GMS
In 2018, the Company held its Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders
(GMS) on May 25, 2018 at Mercure
Hotel, Jakarta.

The Annual Report, Financial Report,
decision to distribute dividends, and
total honorarium for the Board of
Commissioners have been approved.



Board of Commissioners

The Board of Commissioners
plays an important role in GCG
implementation. The Board’s
oversight function is essential to
ensure the run of the Company's daily
routine. The working relationship
between the Board of Commissioners
and the Board of Directors is a check
and balances in order to realize the
Company'’s vision and mission.

Board of Commissioners
Meetings

Meetings of the Board of
Commissioners and joint meetings
with the Board of Directors are
held regularly. Throughout 2018,
the Board of Commissioners held a
meeting every 2 (two) months, which
was attended by 90% of the Board of
Commissioners. And every 4 (four)
months the Board of Commissioners
conduct a joint meeting with the
Board of Directors.

Board of Commissioners
Remuneration

Upon the approval of GMS on
May 25, 2018, the total amount
of remuneration received by
all members of the Board of
Commissioners in 2018 was Rp
6,943,076,570.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the
Company’s essential organ and

responsible for the running of the
Company, as well as representing
the Company in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association.

Board of Directors Meetings
Throughout 2018, the Board
of Directors conducted regular
meetings every month attended by
93.3% of the Board of Directors.

Board of Directors
Renumeration

Pursuant to the GMS approval held
on May 25, 2018, the total amount
of remuneration received by all
members of the Board of Directors
was Rp 5,645,931,404.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was form to
assist the Board of Commissioners
in executing its oversight function.
Headed by an Independent
Commissioner, the Audit Committee
is authorized to access to the
Company'’s all information, provide
independent analysis, monitor the
examination process of financial
reports by both internal and external
auditors, and provide access to the
internal audit function and audit
findings.

The composition of the Audit
Committee as of December 31,2018
is as follows:

1. Chairman: Selamat (Independent
Commissioner)

2. Members:
a. Ruddy Hermawan Wongso
b. Andreas Lesmana

Executive Committee

This Committee consists of the
Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries as well as the General
Managers of departments and
business units. The Executive
Committee holds meetings regularly
to discuss various subjects that
relate to the management of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The
discussion covers marketing, project
development, financial reporting,
and the improvement in which the
Company is currently focused on,
which is transformation.

Corporate Secretary

The Company's Corporate Secretary
is appointed by and directly
responsible to the Board of Directors
to act as a liaison between the
Board of Directors and the Board
of Commissioners, Shareholders,
the public and media. It is also
the responsibility of the Corporate
Secretary to ensure that the Company
complies with prevailing laws and
regulations of the capital market
Setyadi Surya currently holds the
position of the Company's Corporate
Secretary.
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Internal Audit Unit

Pursuant to the GCG principles,

the Internal Audit Unit is directly

responsible to the President Director.

In executing its functions, the Internal

Audit Unit also collaborates with the

Audit Committee as stipulated in the

Internal Audit Charter. Following are

the Internal Audit Unit's duties and

responsibilities:

® Prepare and implement an Annual
Internal Audit Plan.

e Examine and evaluate the
implementation of internal
control and risk management
based on the Company's policy.

e Assess and examine the efficiency
and effectiveness of finance,
accounting, operation, human
resources, marketing, information
technology, and other functions.

e Provide advice for improvement
and objective information
on all audited activities, at all
management levels.

e Prepare areporton auditfindings
and submit it to the President
Director and the Board of
Commissioners.

* Monitor, analyze and report the
implementation of recommended
actions.

The authorities of the Internal Audit

Unit are to:

e Access all relevantinformation in
regard to the Company.

e Communicate directly with the
Board of Directors, Board of
Commissioners, and/or Audit
Committee.

e Hold regular and incidental
meetings with the Board
of Directors, Board of
Commissioners and/or Audit
Committee.

e Coordinate its activities with the
external auditor.

Compliance Audit

The SOP compliance audit on all
units implemented throughout
2018 includes: the handling of cash,
promotions and Human Resources
and loans.

Non Facility Management, which
covers compliance audit in the
implementation of Finance &
Accounting SOP and Human
Resources Department (HRD) SOP
in all of Ramayana Group's business
units, covers:
1. Finance & Accounting SOP:
a. Procedure for petty cash
management.
b. Procedure for advance
payment.
2. Human Resources Department
SOP:
a. Procedure for
reimbursement.
b. Procedure for operational
vehicles.

medical

The summary of the audit was to
confirm that all of the business units
had followed standard operating
procedures.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is implementing the
precautionary and always maintains
a high level of vigilance in the
operations in order to minimize the
potential risks that could occur. Risk
management systems focused on the
Company are:

1. Economic Risk

Economicrisk includes a number
of factors, such as fluctuations in
the Rupiah exchange rate, interest
rates and inflation. These factors
have a significant impact on
the Company’s performance,
specifically affecting the
Company’s outstanding loan
position and purchasing power
of target consumers. In turn, this
exerts an effect on consumers’
ability to purchase the products
and services offered by the
Company.

In order to minimize economic risk,
Ramayana intensively monitors
the economic condition and
seeks professional opinions from
competent sources. The Company
is also naturally hedged against




currency fluctuations, through
the US-Dollar denominated
revenues from its businesses.
No less important, the Company
consistently matches the currency
of the loans for project financing
with that for project revenues.

2. Security Risks

Security is one of the key issues in
any business. In the past, a number
of security issues, particularly that
of terrorism, have proven to be
detrimental to Indonesia and to
Ramayana'’s business activities.

As a preventive action, Ramayana
has putin place a set of Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP) to
handle security problems and
apply strict security standards in
every field.

3. Business and Property Risks

As a company that owns various
highly-valuable assets, Ramayana
is also vulnerable to natural
disasters and other adverse
events, such as fires, earthquakes,
floods and other business
interruptions. In order to minimize
such risks, all of the Company's
properties are insured with
coverage commensurate with the
market values of the properties.
All insurance policies were
underwritten by the most trusted
and reliable insurance brokers.
The Company also implements a
set of SOP to handle emergency
events.

4. Competition Risks

The retail sector has witnessed
increasingly aggressive business
competition from small sellers,
malls, kiosks and itinerant
clothing merchants, targeting
our market segments. Today
retailers across the archipelago
are faced with the same new
threat as in western countries, as
internet-based online shopping
gathers momentum. Ramayana
has attempted to ride this wave
through cooperation with the

renowned online shopping
platforms: Lazada, Tokopedia
and Shopee.

Hence, the competition emerges
in three forms: from competitors
within the industry, from an
oversupply of retail space, and
from a rapidly growing online
internet shopping platform.
Suppliers attract customers by
cutting prices and offering special
promotions.

On-line offers unparalleled
convenience, particularly when
combined with the same day
delivery service. Competitive
product innovation remains a key
option in the Company’s business
development activities, by
featuring originality, uniqueness,
and products of highest quality,
as well as excellent service and
complete supporting facilities
that meet customer needs.
Yet, the exciting novelty of
online shopping will prove
acutely disappointing for many
consumers when they discover
that they do not get what they
thought they were buying, the
quality varies dramatically, and
complaints/refunds are slow and
cumbersome, and the ostensible
savings in time and expens
eevaporates, when slow delivery
disappoints.

5. Legal Risks

To establish or open a supermarket
or department store, the Company
must obtain a permit from the
relevant agency, taking into
account the government's role
as a regulator of policy covering
various social sectors, economic
and cultural communities in the
area. Therefore, the Company
is always working with relevant
local agencies and consistently
meeting the legal requirements
imposed by the Government.
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

The Company is aware of the
importance of maintaining
sustainable business activities. As a
big organization, therefore, Ramayana
puts sustainability as a top priority
in every day business activities. We
interpret sustainability as more than
just creating monetary gain, but
no less important is balancing the
business growth with environmental
stability and improvement in people’s
welfare.

To maintain our business
sustainability, we carry out the
essence of the triple bottom concept
(Profit, Planet, People). In other words,
we incorporate the concept into a
number of development aspects,
which are the Company’s profit,
protection and sustainability, and
community welfare.

We also realize that Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) is a manifestation
where the synergy between CSR
activities and business performance
plays a vital role in achieving the
Company’s sustainable growth.
The following are our CSR activities
throughout 2018:

Helping Lombok

On August 9-10, 2018, we directly
distributed all of the donations,
valued at nearly Rp600 million
consisting of 3,319 packages of daily
staple, to the victims of earthquake in
Lombok, West Nusa Tenggara.

Free Medical Treatment

In collaboration with 13 (thirteen)
Buddhist Vihara in Cikarang and
Karawang, the Company distributed
as many as 3,100 coupons to the
surrounding communities for free

medical treatment. The event was
held at Sariputra school, Cikarang,
on September 2, 2018. This social
event was the 11th time being held
with the total fund of Rp 961,431,300.




Social Activity for Earthquakes
in Palu and Donggala

The earth quakes that hit Palu and
Donggala urged us last October 2018
to send the donations to the victims
of the natural disasters. The aid was
in the form of daily staple valued at
Rp 1,171,266,592.

Humanitarian Assistance for
Tsunami Victims

We held a social activity to help the
communities in Anyer and Lampung,
as we channeled the donation for
Rp 200 million for the community
development purpose.

o B
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Audit Committee’s Report

In order to establish the principles of Good Corporate Governance, the Company has established an Audit Committee,
whose mandate it is to assist the Board in carrying out its duties and responsibilities with respect to business risk
management and to the Company'’s internal control system.

In accordance with the regulations of the Financial Service Authority (OJK - previously known as Capital Market
Supervisory Agency and Financial Institution - BAPEPAM & LK) and the Indonesia Stock Exchange, the Audit Committee
has conducted several meetings, among others being those on March 19, 2017 to review the Company’s financial
statements ended December 31,2018, May 11,2018, August 9, 2018, and November 9, 2018 to review the Company'’s
interim report. These meetings discussed the findings of and recommendations by the External Auditor, the Board
of Directors, the Internal Auditor and the Corporate Secretary.

Disclosure obligations on the review by the Audit Committee of the Company’s Annual Report - the following are
our submissions:

a. Selection of Certified Public Accountants for 2018, recommended by the Board of Directors, taking into account
aspects of independence and competence, and approved by the Board of Commissioners, having received
authority from the shareholders in a General Meeting of Shareholders held on May 25, 2018.

b. The Company is run by an effective internal control system, which is being continually upgraded, in accordance
with policies outlined by the Board of Directors and supervised by the Board of Commissioners.

c. Financial statements have been prepared and well presented to meet general accounting principles as practiced
in the Republic of Indonesia.

d. The Company always adheres to the regulations of capital markets and to other laws relating to the activities of
the Company.

e. There has been no known potential for abuse or diversion which would require attention or the consideration of
the Board of Commissioners.

Similarly, this Audit Committee report was presented. We thank the Board of Commissioners for their attention.

Jakarta, March 28, 2019
Audit Committee PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa Thk

. SELAMAT
Chairman
L/ -
RUDDY HERMAWAN WONGSO ANDREAS LESMANA
Member Member




Statement of Responsibility from
Board of Commissioners
and Board of Directors

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE 2018 ANNUAL REPORT OF PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA TBK.

We, the undersigned hereby declare that all the information contained the 2018 Annual Report of PT Ramayana
Lestari Sentosa Tbk has been presented completely in all material aspects and we fully responsible for the
trustworthiness of the contents of this Annual Report. We acknowledged accordingly.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

’é PAULUS TUMEWU ﬂ

President Commissioner
M. IQBAL KOH BOON KIM
Commissioner Independent Commissioner

e

SELAMAT
Independent Commissioner Commissioner

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

: [ ]
/ AGUS MAKMUR
President Director

JANE MELINDA TUMEWU SURYANTO

Vice President director Director
HALOMPAN HUTABARAT

GANTANG NITIPRANATIO MUHAMMAD YANI
Director Director Director
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Financial Report

Independent Auditor’s report
for the year ended
December 31,2018 and 2017



PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa Tbk

Financial statements as of December 31, 2018
and for the year then ended
with independent auditors’ report



J1. K.H. Wahid Hasyim No. 220 A-B Jakarta 10250 Indonesia Fax. (021) 31934245

PT.Ramayana Lestari Sentosa, Tbk Telp. (021) 3914566 - 3151563, 3106653 (Hunting)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
REGARDING THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018
AND FOR THE YEAR THEN ENDED
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We, the undersigned :

1. Name : AGUS MAKMUR
Office address : JI. K.H. Wahid Hasyim No. 220 A-B, Jak-Pus
Home address /
As stated in ID : Kp. Paragajen RT / RW. 03 / 06, Cisarua - Bogor
Phone number 1 (021) 3151563
Title : President Director

2. Name : SURYANTO
Office address : J1. K.H. Wahid Hasyim No. 220 A-B, Jak-Pus
Home address /
As stated in ID : JI. Mangga Besar IVL No. 71A, Jak-Bar
Phone number 1(021) 3151563
Title : Director

Declare that :

1. We are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Company‘s financial statements;

2. The financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indonesian
Financial Accounting Standards;

3. a. All information contained in the Company‘s financial statements has been disclosed in a
complete and truthful manner;
b. The Company*s financial statements do not contain any incorrect information or material facts,
and do not omit material information and facts;

4. We are responsible for the Company‘s internal control systems .

Thus, this statement is made truthfully.

Agus Makmur Suryanto
President Director Director
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This report is ariginally issued in the Indonesian language.

Independent Auditors’' Report

Report No. 00308/2.1032/AU.1/05/1561-1/1/111/2019

The Shareholders, Boards of Commissioners and Directors
PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa Tbk

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa Tbk,
which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of such financial
statements in accordance with Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on such financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing established by the Indonesian
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
such financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Purwantono, Sungkoro & Surja
Registered Public Accountants KMK No, 603/KM.1/2015
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Report No. 00308/2.1032/AU.1/05/1561-1/1/111/2019 (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa Tbk as of December 31, 2018, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Indonesian

Financial Accounting Standards.

Purwantono, Sungkoro & Surja

.

Benediktio Salim, CPA
Public Accountant Registration No. AP.1561

March 27, 2019



These financial statements are originally issued in the Indonesian language.

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2018

(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits
Accounts receivable
Trade
Third parties
Others
Related parties
Third parties
Short-term investments
Inventories
Prepaid expenses - net
Advances
Current portion of long-term
prepaid rent - net

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets - net

Long-term prepaid rent - net of
current portion and
impairment loss - net

Security deposits

Deferred tax assets - net

Intangible assets - net

Other non-current assets

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

2,4,26,28
2,5,26,28
28
3
6
26
2,23
6
2,7,28
2,3,8,18,21
2

2,10a
19,23a,24

2,3,9,20

2,10a
19,23a,24
2,10b,23b,28
2,3,12
2,3
2,28

1,950,775 751,901
464,656 1,279,068
16,346 10,046
1,513 16,807
19,916 30,269
86,068 127,509
859,767 740,993
6,878 6,323
60,990 29,208
90,579 101,372
3,557,488 3,093,496
1,164,225 1,235,256
407,822 452,372
31,706 30,602
51,349 58,537
12,217 14,669
18,240 6,990
1,685,559 1,798,426
5,243,047 4,891,922

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements taken as a whole.
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These financial statements are originally issued in the Indonesian language.

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As of December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Notes
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - third parties 2,27,28
Trade 11
Others 26
Taxes payable 2,3,12
Accrued expenses 2,13,27,28
Total Current Liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Liabilities for employee benefits 2,3,14
Total Liabilities
EQUITY
Share capital - Rp50 par value
per share (full amount)
Authorized - 28,000,000,000 shares
Issued and fully
paid - 7,096,000,000 shares 15
Additional paid-in capital - net 2
Treasury share - 373,181,100 shares 2,15
Retained earnings:
Appropriated
Unappropriated 16
Other comprehensive loss - net 7,14
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

909,334 949,543
31,468 6,878
97,100 48,691
55,193 43,528

1,093,095 1,048,640
322,487 348,937
1,415,582 1,397,577
354,800 354,800
132,494 132,494
(339,861) (339,861)
70,000 70,000
3,659,800 3,341,608
(49,768) (64,696)
3,827,465 3,494,345
5,243,047 4,891,922

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements taken as a whole.
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These financial statements are originally issued in the Indonesian language.

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

REVENUES
Outright sales
Commission on consignment sales

Total Revenues

COST OF OUTRIGHT SALES
GROSS PROFIT

Selling expenses

General and administrative expenses
Other income

Other expenses

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Finance income
Tax on finance income

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax expense - net

INCOME FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale

financial assets
Related income tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement on liabilities
for employee benefits
Related income tax

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR

THE YEAR AFTER TAX

Year Ended December 31,

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

EARNINGS PER SHARE (full amount)

Notes 2018 2017

2
17 4,805,123 4,786,508
17 934,430 836,220
17 5,739,553 5,622,728
2,818 (3,232,948) (3,410,434)
2,506,605 2,212,294

2,10a,10b,19

23b,23c,23d,24 (425,171) (379,456)
2,9,12,14,20,23b (1,473,612) (1,476,485)
2,8,21 18,421 20,432
2,7,821 (19,295) @)
606,948 376,784
2 134,701 109,525
(24,477) (19,717)
717,172 466,592
2,12 (130,067) (60,012)
587,105 406,580
2 (6,201) 5,380
1,550 (1,345)
14 26,106 (15,532)
(6,527) 3,884
14,928 (7.613)
602,033 398,967
2,22 87.33 60.48

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements taken as a whole.
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Balance as of December 31, 2016

Total comprehensive income for the year

Payments of cash dividend

Balance as of December 31, 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year

Payments of cash dividend

Balance as of December 31, 2018

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

Other Comprehensive Loss

Changes in Fair
Value of

Remeasurement

on Liabilities

Share Capital - Additional Retained Earnings
Issued and Fully Paid-in Capital - Treasury Available-for-Sale for Employee
Notes Paid Net Shares Appropriated Unappropriated Financial Assets - Net Benefits - Net Total Equity

354,800 132,494 (339,861) 70,000 3,177,049 (10,418) (46,665) 3,337,399
- - - - 406,580 4,035 (11,648) 398,967
16 - - - - (242,021) - - (242,021)
354,800 132,494 (339,861) 70,000 3,341,608 (6,383) (58,313) 3,494,345
- - - - 587,105 (4,651) 19,579 602,033
16 - - - - (268,913) - - (268,913)
354,800 132,494 (339,861) 70,000 3,659,800 (11,034) (38,734) 3,827,465

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements taken as a whole.
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These financial statements are originally issued in the Indonesian language.

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

Year Ended December 31,

Notes 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from sales 8,528,346 8,153,381
Cash payments to suppliers (7,215,438) (6,680,906)
Cash payments for salaries

and employee welfare (631,610) (638,880)
Payments for income taxes (73,151) (89,588)
Cash receipts from:

Finance income - net 109,583 89,095

Other operating activities 69,423 18,477
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 787,153 851,579
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal (placement) of time deposits - net 814,412 (122,212)
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments 7 74,883 -
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 9 441 992
Additions in intangible assets (178) (14,130)
Additions in security deposits (1,414) (2,435)
Placement of short-term investments 7 (40,000) (53,979)
Additions in long-term rent 10a (59,804) (129,499)
Additions in fixed assets 9 (107,706) (140,144)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 680,634 (461,407)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payments of cash dividend 16 (268,913) (242,021)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,198,874 148,151
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 4 751,901 603,750
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 4 1,950,775 751,901

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements taken as a whole.
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PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2018 and for the Year Then Ended
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

1. GENERAL

a.

Establishment of the Company

PT Ramayana Lestari Sentosa Tbk (the “Company”) was established in Indonesia based on
Notarial Deed No. 60 dated December 14, 1983 of R. Muh. Hendarmawan, S.H. The Deed of
Establishment was approved by the Ministry of Justice of the Republic of Indonesia in its Decision
Letter No.C2-5877.HT.01.01.TH.85 dated September 17, 1985 and was published in the
Addendum No. 589 of the State Gazette No. 9 dated October 3, 1985. The Company’s Articles of
Association has been amended several times, the latest amendment regarding the approval from
shareholders for the changes the Company’s Article of Association to adjust with the regulation of
Financial Service Authority (“OJK”) of which as notarized under Notarial Deed No. 5 dated
September 16, 2015 of Rianto, S.H. The amendment of the Articles of Association has been
approved by the Ministry of Law and Human Rights of the Republic of Indonesia in its Decision
Letter No. AHU-0024968.AH.01.11.Tahun 2016 dated February 25, 2016.

The Company started its commercial operations in 1983. According to Article 3 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Company operates a chain of department stores, which sell various
items such as clothes, accessories, bags, shoes, cosmetics and daily needs through the
Company’s department store and supermarket. In 2018, the Company closed two (2) stores and
opened five (5) new stores. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the number of stores operated by
the Company are as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Ramayana 113 107
Robinson 4 7
Cahaya 2 2

On December 31, 2017, the above stores include 22 supermarkets under the SPAR name. As of
September 30, 2018, the Company has terminate the agreement with SPAR. All the stores
operated by the Company are located in Jakarta, Java (West Java, East Java and Central Java),
Sumatera, Bali, Kalimantan, Nusa Tenggara, Sulawesi and Papua. The Company’s head office is
located in JI. K.H. Wahid Hasyim No. 220 A-B, Jakarta 10250.

The Company’s ultimate shareholder is PT Ramayana Makmursentosa with 58.98% ownership in
the Company.

Company’s Public Offering

On June 26, 1996, the Company received the effective statement from the Chairman of the Capital
Market and Financial Institution Supervisory Agency (“BAPEPAM-LK") in its Decision Letter
No. 1038/PM/1996 to offer 80 million shares to the public with par value of Rp500 (full amount) per
share through the Indonesia Stock Exchange at offering price of Rp3,200 (full amount) per share.
Since then, the Company has conducted the following capital transactions:

1. On September 15, 1997, the Company issued bonus shares, whereby each shareholders
holding one share was entitled to receive one new share. The outstanding shares became
700,000,000 shares.

2. OnJune 8, 2000, the Company changed the par value per share from Rp500 (full amount) per
share to Rp250 (full amount) per share. The outstanding shares became 1,400,000,000
shares.

3. On June 18, 2004, the Company changed the par value per share from Rp250 (full amount)
per share to Rp50 (full amount) per share. The outstanding shares became 7,000,000,000
shares.
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PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2018 and for the Year Then Ended
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

1. GENERAL (continued)

b. Company’s Public Offering (continued)

Since then, the Company has conducted the following capital transactions: (continued)

4,

On July 4, 2005, the Company issued 32,000,000 shares in connection with the exercise of
share options by the employees (ESOP). The outstanding shares became 7,032,000,000
shares.

On October 2, 2006, the Company issued 32,000,000 shares in connection with the exercise
of share options by the employees (ESOP). The outstanding shares became 7,064,000,000
shares.

On July 28, 2010, the Company issued 32,000,000 shares in connection with the exercise of
share options by the employees (ESOP). The outstanding shares became 7,096,000,000
shares.

Starting on August 25, 2015 until December 31, 2015, the Company has purchased
208,332,000 treasury shares. The outstanding shares became 6,887,668,000 shares.

During 2016, the Company has purchased 164,849,100 treasury shares. The outstanding
shares became 6,722,818,900 shares.

The Company has listed all of its shares in the Indonesia Stock Exchange.

c. Boards of Commissioners and Directors, Audit Committee and Employees

As of December 31, 2018, the composition of the Company’'s Boards of Commissioners and
Directors are as follows:

Board of Commissioners Board of Directors
Paulus Tumewu - President Commissioner Agus Makmur - President Director
Mohammad Igbal - Commissioner Jane Melinda Tumewu - Vice President Director
Kismanto - Commissioner Suryanto - Director
Koh Boon Kim - Independent Commissioner Gantang Nitipranatio - Director
Selamat - Independent Commissioner Muhamad Yani - Director
Halomoan Hutabarat - Director

As of December 31, 2017, the composition of the Company’'s Boards of Commissioners and
Directors are as follows:

Board of Commissioners Board of Directors
Paulus Tumewu - President Commissioner Agus Makmur - President Director
Mohammad Igbal - Commissioner Suryanto - Director
Kismanto - Commissioner Gantang Nitipranatio - Director
Koh Boon Kim - Independent Commissioner Muhamad Yani - Director
Selamat - Independent Commissioner Halomoan Hutabarat - Director



These financial statements are originally issued in the Indonesian language.

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2018 and for the Year Then Ended
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

1. GENERAL (continued)
c. Boards of Commissioners and Directors, Audit Committee and Employees (continued)

As of December 31, 2018, the composition of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Chairman: - Selamat
Members: - Ruddy Hermawan Wongso
- Andreas Lesmana

As of December 31, 2017, the composition of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Chairman: - Selamat
Members: - Ruddy Hermawan Wongso
- Tonang Sendjaja

The establishment of the Company’s Audit Committee has complied with OJK Rule No. IX.1.5.
The Company’s key management consists of Boards of Commissioners and Directors.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has 7,734 and 9,352 employees, respectively
(unaudited).

The Company's financial statements were completed and authorized for issuance by the
Company'’s Board of Directors on March 27, 2019.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indonesian Financial Accounting
Standards (“SAK”), which comprise the Statements and Interpretations issued by the Board of
Financial Accounting Standards of the Indonesian Institute of Accountants and the Regulations
and Guidelines on Financial Statement Presentation and Disclosures issued by OJK.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“PSAK”) 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and using the historical cost basis
except as otherwise disclosed in the related notes herein.

The statement of cash flows present receipts and disbursements of cash and cash equivalents
classified into operating, investing and financing activities, where the cash flows from operating
activities are presented using the direct method.

The financial reporting period of the Company is January 1 - December 31.

The accounts included in the Company’s financial statements are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The
financial statements are presented in Rupiah which is the functional currency of the Company.

All amounts in the financial statements are rounded to and presented in millions of Rupiah, unless
otherwise stated.
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As of December 31, 2018 and for the Year Then Ended
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand and in banks and time deposits with maturities
of three (3) months or less at the time of placement, not pledged as collateral for loans and without
restrictions in the usage.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand
and in banks and time deposits as defined above, net of outstanding overdraft, if any.

c. Transactions with Related Parties
The Company has transactions with related parties as defined in PSAK 7.

Transactions with related parties are made based on terms agreed by the parties, which may not
be the same as those of the transaction between unrelated parties.

All significant transactions and balances with related parties are disclosed in the relevant notes to
the financial statements.

d. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined by moving-
average method which includes all costs that occur to get this inventories to the location and
current conditions. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The Company provides allowance for obsolescence and/or decline in values of inventories based
on periodic reviews of the physical condition and net realizable values of the inventories.

e. Fixed Assets
All fixed assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises its purchase price and any costs
directly attributable in bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable

of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent to initial recognition, fixed assets are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation of an asset starts when it is available for use and is computed using the straight-line
method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets:

Years
Buildings 10-20
Building renovations and improvements 4-8
Store equipment 4-8
Transportation equipment 4
Office equipment 4-8



These financial statements are originally issued in the Indonesian language.

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2018 and for the Year Then Ended
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e.

Fixed Assets (continued)

An item of fixed asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year the
asset is derecognized.

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Lands are stated at cost and not depreciated.

Legal cost of land rights in the form of Business Usage Rights (“Hak Guna Usaha” or “HGU"),
Building Usage Right (“Hak Guna Bangunan” or “HGB”) and Usage Rights (“Hak Pakai” or “HP”)
when the land was acquired initially are recognized as part of the cost of the land under the “Fixed
Assets” account and not amortized. Meanwhile the extension or the legal renewal costs of land
rights in the form of HGU, HGB and HP were recognized as part of “Deferred Charges” account in
the statement of financial position and were amortized over the shorter of the rights' legal life and
land's economic life.

Repairs and maintenance are taken to the profit or loss when these are incurred. The cost of major
renovation and restoration is included in the carrying amount of the related fixed asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of
performance of the existing asset will flow to the Company, and is depreciated over the remaining
useful life of the related asset.

Construction in Progress

Construction in progress is stated at cost and presented as part of the fixed assets. The
accumulated costs will be reclassified to the appropriate fixed assets account when construction is
substantially completed and the asset is ready for its intended use. Assets under construction are
not depreciated as these are not yet available for use.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets comprising of application development, system development and computer
software, include all direct costs related to preparation of the assets for their intended use,
amortized using the straight-line method over 4 (four) years.

At each reporting date, the useful lives and amortization method are reviewed by the management
of the Company, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

10
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

g.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. Where
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously
recognized impairment is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss is recognized. Where an
impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Leases

The Company adopted PSAK 30, “Lease”, when a lease includes both land and building elements,
an entity should assess the classification of each element separately whether as a finance or an
operating lease.

The Company classifies leases based on the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of a leased asset are vested upon the lessor or the lessee, and the substance of the
transaction rather than the form of the contract.

Finance Lease - as Lessee

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased assets. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the
lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of liability.
Finance cost are charged directly to the current year operation.

If there is reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
the leased asset is depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Capitalized leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease
term. Any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount of an asset in a sale-and-leaseback
transaction is deferred and amortized over the lease term.

Operating Lease - as Lessee

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset. Accordingly, the related lease payments are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating Lease - as Lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases.

11
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid rent is amortized using the straight-line method over the rental period. The current portion
of the prepaid rent to be charged to operation within one (1) year is presented as “Current Portion
of Long-term Prepaid Rent - Net” account in the statement of financial position.

On the other hand, the long-term portion of prepaid rent is presented as “Long-term Prepaid Rent -
Net of Current Portion and Impairment Loss - Net” account in the statement of financial position.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, accounts
receivable - trade, accounts receivable - others, security deposits and other non-current assets,
which are classified as loans and receivables, and short-term investments, which are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment, if
any. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or
those that are not classified as financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. After initial
measurement, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses
recognized in equity in the statement of financial position until the investment is derecognized. At
that time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity shall be reclassified to profit
or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
“loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount net of allowance for impairment loss, if
any. An estimate of allowance for impairment loss is made when there is objective evidence (such
as probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will
not be able to collect the receivables under the original terms of the invoice and is established
through provisions charged to income. The outstanding balance of trade receivables is
derecognized and written off against the allowance for impairment loss when assessed to be
uncollectible.

12
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

j-

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Financial Liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and accrued expenses
and are initially recognized at fair value, inclusive of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
effective interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
amortization is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognized when (i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset expired,
or (ii) the Company transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement, or (iii) the Company have transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset but have transferred the control of the asset.

13
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

j-

Financial Instruments (continued)

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

When an existing liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Employee Benefits

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefits plan is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), which are recognized as other

comprehensive income, consists of:

i. Actuarial gains and losses;

ii. The return on plan assets, excluding the amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset); and

iii. Any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding the amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability (asset).

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognized in other comprehensive
income will not be reclassified to profit or loss in the next periods. Past service costs are
recognized in profit or loss at the earlier of:

i. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

ii. The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying discount rate to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The

Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “General

and Administrative Expenses” in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

i. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs and gains and losses on
curtailments; and

ii. Net interest expense or income.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognized when the
curtailment or settlement occurs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

K.

Employee Benefits (continued)

A curtailment occurs when an entity either:

i. Is demonstrably committed to make a significant reduction in the number of employees
covered by a plan; or

ii. Amends the terms of a defined benefit plan so that a significant element of future service by
current employees will no longer qualify for benefits, or will qualify only for reduced benefits.

A settlement occurs when the Company enters into a transaction that eliminates all further legal or
constructive obligation for part or all of the benefits provided under a defined benefit plan.

Additional Paid-in Capital - Net
Additional paid-in capital - net represents the difference between the offering price and the par

value of share capital, net of share issuance costs and additional paid-in capital in relation with tax
amnesty program.

. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

The Company considers the primary indicators and other indicators in determining its functional
currency, if indicators are mixed and the functional currency is not obvious, management uses its
judgements to determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic
effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

Transactions involving foreign currencies are recorded in Rupiah amounts at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the time the transactions are made. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are adjusted to Rupiah by taking the average of
transaction exchange rate by Bank Indonesia as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. Resulting gains
or losses are credited or charged to operations of the current year.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the exchange rates used are as follows (full amount):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

United States Dollar 14,481 13,548
Singapore Dollar 10,603 10,134

Recognition of Revenues and Expenses

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Sales is recognized when goods are
delivered to customers net of returns and discounts allowed. Revenue from services is recognized
when services are rendered to customers. Net revenue represent sales of products, including the
amortization of deferred income from the contract for promotional activities, net of returns and
discounts allowed. Revenues from outright and consignment sales are recognized when the goods
are sold at the sales counter. Commission on consignment sales are recognized as the amount of
the sales of consignment goods to customers less the related costs, which are recognized as
amount due to consignors.

Expenses are recognized as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0.

Taxation
Final Tax

Tax regulation in Indonesia determined that certain taxable income is subject to final tax. Final tax
applied to the gross value of transactions is applied even when the parties carrying the transaction
recognizing losses.

Referring to revised PSAK 46 as mentioned above, final tax is no longer governed by PSAK 46.

The difference between the carrying amount of a revalued asset and its tax base is a temporary
difference and gives rise to a deferred tax liability or asset, except for certain asset such as land,
which realization is taxed with final tax on gross value of transaction.

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority.

Current tax expense is determined based on the taxable profit for the year computed using the
prevailing tax rates.

Underpayment/overpayment of income tax are presented as part of “Income Tax Expense -
Current” in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The Company also
presented interest/penalty, if any, as part of “Income Tax Expense - Current”.

Amendments to tax obligations are recorded when a tax assessment letter is received or, if
appealed against, when the result of the appeal is determined.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the liability method for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their respective tax bases at each reporting date. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary differences and accumulated fiscal losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available in future years against which the deductible
temporary differences and accumulated fiscal losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized. At the end of each reporting
period, the Company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. The Company recognizes a
previously unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

p.

Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing
certain products (business segment), or in providing products within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. They are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated.

Earnings per Share (“EPS")

Earnings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of issued and fully paid
shares during the year.

The weighted-average number of shares outstanding for 2018 and 2017 are 6,722,818,900
shares, respectively.

Treasury Shares

Repurchase of equity instruments (treasury shares) are recognized at reacquisition cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the acquisition, resale,
issuance or cancellation of the Company's equity instrument. The difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized as part of additional paid-in capital in the
equity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company have a present obligation (legal or constructive)
where, as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If
it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Effective

The following are several issued accounting standards by the Indonesian Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“DSAK”) that are considered relevant to the financial reporting of the Company
but not yet effective for 2018 financial statements:

i.  PSAK 71: Financial Instruments, adopted from IFRS 9, effective January 1, 2020 with earlier
application is permitted.

This PSAK provides for classification and measurement of financial instruments based on the
characteristics of contractual cash flows and business model of the entity; expected credit
loss impairment model that resulting information more timely, relevant and understandable to
users of financial statements; accounting for hedging that reflect the entity's risk management
better by introduce a more general requirements based on management's judgment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
t. Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Effective (continued)

The following are several issued accounting standards by the Indonesian Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“DSAK”) that are considered relevant to the financial reporting of the Company
but not yet effective for 2018 financial statements: (continued)

i. PSAK 72: Revenue from Contracts with Customers, adopted from IFRS 15, effective
January 1, 2020 with earlier application is permitted.

This PSAK is a single standards that a joint project between the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), provides
revenue recognition from contracts with customers, and the entity is expected to have
analizing before recognizing the revenue.

iii. PSAK 73: Leases, adopted from IFRS 16, effective January 1, 2020 with earlier application is
permitted, but not before an entity applies PSAK 72: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This PSAK establish the principles of recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure
of the lease by introducing a single accounting model, with the requirement to recognize the
right-of-use assets and liability of the lease; there are 2 optional exclusions in the recognition
of the lease assets and liabilities: (i) short-term lease and (ii) lease with low-value underlying
assets.

At the issuance of these financial statements, the Company is still evaluating the potential impact
of these new and revised standards to the Company’s financial statements.

3. SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments

The following judgments are made by management in the process of applying the Company’'s
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the Company’s
financial statements:

Leases

The Company has several leases whereas the Company act as lessee in respect of rental of land and
spaces for warehouses and stores. The Company evaluates whether significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets are transferred based on PSAK 30, “Leases”, which requires the
Company to make judgment and estimates of the transfer of risks and rewards related to the
ownership of asset. Based on the review performed by the Company for the current rental agreement,
accordingly, the rent transactions were classified as operating lease.
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3. SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Judgments (continued)
The following judgments are made by management in the process of applying the Company’'s
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the Company’s
financial statements: (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Company entered into agreement where the Company acts as lessor to rent space at the stores.
The Company has determined, based on evaluating term and condition of agreements, that all risks
and rewards of ownership of the rented space at the store are not transferred, accordingly the
Company records the rent transaction as operating lease.

Determination of Functional Currency

The Company'’s functional currency is the currency from the primary economic environment where the
Company conducts business. The functional currency is the currency that has impact on revenue and
expenses from product given.

Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Company determines the classification of certain assets and liabilities as financial assets and
financial liabilities by judging if they meet the definition set forth in PSAK 55. Accordingly, the financial
assets and financial liabilities are accounted for in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies
disclosed in Note 2.

Allowance for Impairment of Trade Receivables

The Company evaluates specific accounts where it has information that certain customers are unable
to meet their financial obligations. In these cases, the Company uses judgment, based on the best
available facts and circumstances, including but not limited to the length of its relationship with the
customer and the customer’s current credit status based on third party credit reports and known
market factors, to record specific provisions for customers against amounts due to reduce its
receivable amounts that the Company expects to collect. These specific provisions are re-evaluated
and adjusted as additional information received affects the amounts of allowance for impairment of
trade receivables.

These specific allowance are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information received affects the
amounts of allowance for impairment of trade receivable. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Company’s management believes that all trade receivables are collectible and therefore no allowance
for impairment loss is needed. Further details on trade receivables are disclosed in Note 6.
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3. SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Company'’s financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to
sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing the
asset. In assessing the value in use, the estimated net future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the specific risks to the asset.

In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used to
determine the fair value of the assets. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or
other available fair value indicators. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. The future cash flow projection is for a period of ten years and does not include restructuring
activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance
the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the
discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Management believes that there is no event or change in circumstances that may indicate any
impairment in the value of its non-financial assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Employee Benefits

The measurement of the Company’s obligations and cost for pension and liabilities for employee
benefits is dependent on its selection of certain assumptions used by the independent actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include among others, discount rates, future annual
salary increase, annual employee turn-over rate, disability rate, retirement age and mortality rate.
Actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized immediately in the financial position through other comprehensive income the period in
which they occur.

While the Company believes that its assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the Company’s actual experiences or significant changes in the Company’'s assumptions
may materially affect its estimated liabilities for pension and employee benefits and net employee
benefits expense. Further details on employee benefits are disclosed in Note 14.
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3. SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

Depreciation of Fixed Assets and Amortization of Intangible Assets

The costs of fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Management estimates the useful lives of these fixed assets to be within 4 to 20 years. These are
common life expectancies applied in the industry where the Company conducts its business. Further
details are disclosed in Note 9.

The costs of intangible asset are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
within 4 years. These are common life expectancies applied in the industry where the Company
conducts its business.

Income Tax

The Company recognizes liabilities for corporate income tax based on estimation of whether additional
corporate income tax will be due. Further details are disclosed in Note 12.

Deferred Tax Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period
and reduces these to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

The Company’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary
differences is based on the level and timing of forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting
periods. This forecast is based on the Company’s past results and future expectations on revenues
and expenses as well as future tax planning strategies. However, there is no assurance that the
Company will generate sufficient taxable income to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized. Further details are disclosed in Note 12.

Allowance for Obsolescence and Decline in Value of Inventories

Allowance for obsolescence and decline in value of inventories is estimated based on the best
available facts and circumstances, including but not limited to, the inventories’ own physical conditions,
their market selling prices and estimated costs to sell. The allowance are re-evaluated and adjusted as
additional information received affects the amount estimated. Further details are disclosed in Note 8.

Uncertain Tax Exposure

In certain circumstances, the Company may not able to determine the exact amount of current or
future tax liabilities due to possibility of examination by the taxation authority. Uncertainties exist with
respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable
income. In determining the amount to be recognized in respect of an uncertain tax liability, the
Company applies similar considerations as it would use in determining the amount of a provision to be
recognized in accordance with PSAK 57, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
The Company analyzes all tax positions related to income taxes to determine if a tax liability for
unrecognized tax expense should be recognized.

Financial Instruments

The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair values, which requires the use of
accounting estimates. While significant components of fair value measurement were determined using
verifiable objective evidences, the amount of changes in fair values would differ if the Company utilized
different valuation methodology. Any changes in fair values of these financial assets and liabilities
would affect directly to the Company’s profit or loss.
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Cash on hand 22,884 23,646
Cash in banks - third parties:
Rupiah

PT Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Thk 88,957 138,845
PT Bank Central Asia Tbhk 77,362 42,837
Standard Chartered Bank Indonesia 77,056 -
Citibank, N.A., Indonesia Branch 34,725 49,253
PT Bank Danamon Indonesia Tbk 34,480 202,883
PT Bank Mandiri (Persero) Tbk 16,243 17,854
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Thk 13,152 1,193
PT Bank Rakyat Indonesia (Persero) Thk 10,447 10,144
PT Bank Maybank Indonesia Thk 3,627 442
PT Bank DKI 2,786 2,051
Deutsche Bank AG, Jakarta Branch 155 8,652
PT Bank Permata Thk - 12

United States Dollar
Deutsche Bank AG, Jakarta Branch
(US$213,253 as of December 31, 2018
and 2017) 3,088 2,889

Sub-total 362,078 477,055

Cash equivalents (time deposits and on
call deposits) - third parties:

Rupiah
PT Bank Rakyat Indonesia (Persero) Thk 674,400 -
PT Bank UOB Indonesia 247,800 -
PT Bank Maybank Indonesia Tbhk 209,500 110,400
PT Bank Danamon Indonesia Thk 181,400 -
PT Bank Central Asia Tbk 39,325 22,800
PT Bank DKI 30,000 50,000
PT Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Tbhk 26,000 63,200
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk 15,000 -
Citibank, N.A., Indonesia Branch 4,000 4,800

United States Dollar
Credit Suisse AG, Singapore Branch

(US$5,178,337 as of December 31, 2018) 74,988 -

UBS AG, Singapore Branch
(US$4,378,127 as of December 31, 2018) 63,400 -
Sub-total 1,565,813 251,200
Total 1,950,775 751,901
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
The annual interest for the time deposits and on call deposits are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Rupiah 1.50% - 8.25% 3.10% - 7.50%
United States Dollar 2.16% - 2.38% -

There were no cash and cash equivalents balances placed to a related party.

5. TIME DEPOSITS

This account represents Rupiah and United States Dollar time deposits which placed at the following
third parties banks:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Rupiah
PT Bank Maybank Indonesia Tbk 263,100 112,300
PT Bank Rakyat Indonesia (Persero) Tbk 91,500 383,600
PT Bank Danamon Indonesia Thk 73,300 337,300
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Thk - 195,900
PT Bank Bukopin Tbk - 89,200

United States Dollar
Credit Suisse AG, Singapore Branch
(US$2,538,228 as of December 31, 2018 and

US$7,581,505 as of December 31, 2017) 36,756 102,714

UBS AG, Singapore Branch
(US$4,285,062 as of December 31, 2017) - 58,054
Total 464,656 1,279,068

The above time deposits have maturities within three (3) months to six (6) months from the time of
placement and not pledged as collateral. The annual interest for the time deposits are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Rupiah 6.00% - 8.00% 6.00% - 7.00%
United States Dollar 1.09% - 2.26% 1.09% - 1.45%

There were no time deposits placed to a related party.
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6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE AND OTHERS - THIRD PARTIES

Accounts receivable - trade - third parties represents receivables from banks for purchase payments
made by the customers for using credit cards with details as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Rupiah
PT Espay Debit Indonesia Koe 13,565 -
PT Bank Rakyat Indonesia (Persero) Thk 851 401
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk 803 7
PT Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Tbk 610 1,359
PT Bank Central Asia Tbk 317 6,751
PT Bank DKI 107 345
PT Bank Mandiri (Persero) Thk 93 1,183

Total 16,346 10,046

Accounts receivable - others - third parties represents receivables from rent income, promotion
replacement and rebate. All receivables are denominated in Rupiah. All receivables are in current
category and are not impaired. Based on the review of the possibility of impairment at the end of the
year, management believes that no allowance for impairment loss is needed to cover the possibility of
impairment.

7. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

This account represents investments in debt and share securities in Rupiah which are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Debt securities - third parties:

Rupiah

Obligasi Subordinasi BKLJT | BCA Tahap | Tahun

2018 SR A 30,015 -
Obligasi Subordinasi Berkelanjutan I

Bank Maybank Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2016 24,625 26,175
Obligasi Berkelanjutan | Antam Tahun 2011 9,710 10,082
Sukuk ljarah Il TPS Food Tahun 2016 7,666 10,150
Obligasi Subordinasi Berkelanjutan | Bank UOB

Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2017 6,837 7,001
Obligasi Sukuk Mudharabah Subordinasi |

Bank BRI Syariah Tahun 2016 5,001 5,075
Obligasi Berkelanjutan | Summarecon Agung

Tahap | Tahun 2013 - 18,454
Obligasi Berkelanjutan | Bank Mandiri Tahap Il

Tahun 2017 Seri A - 10,485
Obligasi Indofood Sukses Makmur VIl

Tahun 2017 - 10,465
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill Astra Sedaya Finance

Tahap Il Tahun 2017 - 10,330
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il Adhi Karya Tahap |

Tahun 2017 - 9,976
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il Indosat Tahap |

Tahun 2017 Seri B - 7,102
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7. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)

This account represents investments in debt and share securities in Rupiah which are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets as follows: (continued)

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Share securities - third parties:
Rupiah
Share PT Berlian Laju Tanker Tbk 2,214 2,214

Total 86,068 127,509

On January 2017, the debt securities of BLT Finance were amounting to Rp403 has been converted
into share securities amounting to 11,294,148 shares with a price of Rp706 at the conversion date.

In 2018 and 2017, annual interest rates of debt securities are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017

Rupiah 7.75% - 10.85% 8.00% - 10.85%

In 2018 and 2017, the Company has buy short-term investments amounting to Rp40,000 and
Rp53,979, respectively. Up to December 31, 2018, short-term investments amounting to Rp75,239 has
been realized with total proceed amounting to Rp74,883, which resulting net realized loss amounting to
Rp356. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 changes in fair value of available for sale financial assets,
net of deferred tax, resulted an unrealized loss amounting to Rp11,034 and Rp6,383, respectively,
which were presented as part of “Other Comprehensive Loss - Net” account in the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

Based on PT Pemeringkat Efek Indonesia, securities rating agency, as of December 31, 2018 and
2017, the ratings of the bonds are as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Obligasi Subordinasi BKLJT | BCA Tahap | Tahun

2018 SR A AA -
Obligasi Subordinasi Berkelanjutan Il

Bank Maybank Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2016 AA AA
Obligasi Berkelanjutan | Antam Tahun 2011 BBB+ BBB+
Sukuk ljarah Il TPS Food Tahun 2016 D BBB
Obligasi Subordinasi Berkelanjutan | Bank UOB

Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2017 AA AA
Obligasi Sukuk Mudharabah Subordinasi |

Bank BRI Syariah Tahun 2016 A+ AA+
Obligasi Berkelanjutan | Summarecon Agung

Tahap | Tahun 2013 - A+
Obligasi Berkelanjutan | Bank Mandiri Tahap Il

Tahun 2017 Seri A - AAA
Obligasi Indofood Sukses Makmur VIl

Tahun 2017 - AA+
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill Astra Sedaya Finance

Tahap Ill Tahun 2017 - AA
Obligasi Berkelanjutan 1l Adhi Karya Tahap |

Tahun 2017 - A-
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il Indosat Tahap |

Tahun 2017 Seri B - AAA
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8.

INVENTORIES

This account represents merchandise inventories owned by the Company which are located in the
following regions:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

West Java 249,043 225,732
Jakarta 198,108 173,887
Sumatera 139,867 120,553
East Java 69,741 52,799
Kalimantan 65,066 51,329
Bali and Nusa Tenggara 42,768 38,920
Central Java 42,413 26,128
Papua 26,390 21,177
Sulawesi 26,371 30,468
Total (Note 18) 859,767 740,993

The above inventories are covered by insurance against losses from fire, damage, natural disasters,
riots and other risks amounting to Rp1,240,078 as of December 31, 2018 (2017: Rp704,047), which in
the opinion of the Company’'s management is adequate to cover possible losses arising from such
risks. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there are no inventories pledged as collateral.

Based on the review of the condition of inventories at the end of the year, management assesses that
there are no indications for decline in value for above inventories.

In 2018, there was earthquake disaster in one of the Company's store that resulted losses on
inventories, long-term prepaid rent, fixed assets and security deposits each amounting to Rp8,780,
Rp4,026 (Note 10c), Rp1,712 (Note 9) and Rp185, respectively. For the losses of inventories and fixed
assets, the Company is still in the process for submission of the insurance claims, which compensation
still could not be determined.

In 2017, there was fire accident in one of the Company’s store that resulted in losses on inventories
amounting to Rp7,124 and fixed assets amounting to Rp419 (Note 9), respectively. In 2018, for the
losses of inventories and fixed assets, the Company has received compensation from insurance claim
amounting to Rp5,450.

In 2017, the Company also has received reimbursement from insurance claim amounting to Rp18,965
for losses of inventories and fixed assets incurred in 2016 and 2015.

The net gain from these fire incidents in 2018 and 2017 amounting to Rp5,450 and Rpl11,422,

respectively, which were recorded as part of “Other Income” in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (Note 21).
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9. FIXED ASSETS - NET

Fixed assets consists of:
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Reclassification Balance

Cost
Land 367,723 - - - 367,723
Buildings 885,708 - - - 885,708
Building renovations and improvements 1,153,908 18,142 9,967 51,378 1,213,461
Store equipment 835,583 14,784 3,318 14,551 861,600
Transportation equipment 51,955 3,806 840 - 54,921
Office equipment 82,539 6,657 - - 89,196
Sub-total 3,377,416 43,389 14,125 65,929 3,472,609
Construction in Progress
Building renovations and improvements 54,004 49,419 725 (51,378) 51,320
Store and office equipments 19,175 14,898 630 (14,551) 18,892
Sub-total 73,179 64,317 1,355 (65,929) 70,212
Total Cost 3,450,595 107,706 15,480 - 3,542,821
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings 476,106 42,231 - - 518,337
Building renovations and improvements 915,176 81,600 8,902 - 987,874
Store equipment 707,913 42,513 2,530 - 747,896
Transportation equipment 45,761 3,450 673 - 48,538
Office equipment 70,383 5,568 - - 75,951
Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,215,339 175,362 12,105 - 2,378,596

Net Book Value 1,235,256 1,164,225

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Reclassification Balance

Cost
Land 367,723 - - - 367,723
Buildings 885,708 - - - 885,708
Building renovations and improvements 1,082,583 19,913 2,672 54,084 1,153,908
Store equipment 779,343 24,941 729 32,028 835,583
Transportation equipment 50,572 3,235 1,852 - 51,955
Office equipment 80,484 2,066 11 - 82,539
Sub-total 3,246,413 50,155 5,264 86,112 3,377,416
Construction in Progress
Building renovations and improvements 42,052 66,036 - (54,084) 54,004
Store and office equipments 27,250 23,953 - (32,028) 19,175
Sub-total 69,302 89,989 - (86,112) 73,179
Total Cost 3,315,715 140,144 5,264 - 3,450,595
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings 433,243 42,863 - - 476,106
Building renovations and improvements 830,934 86,541 2,299 - 915,176
Store equipment 663,805 44,735 627 - 707,913
Transportation equipment 44,401 3,212 1,852 - 45,761
Office equipment 64,050 6,333 - - 70,383
Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,036,433 183,684 4,778 - 2,215,339

Net Book Value 1,279,282 1,235,256
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9. FIXED ASSETS - NET (continued)

Depreciation charged to general and administrative expenses were amounting to Rp175,362 in 2018
and Rp183,684 in 2017 (Note 20).

The computation of gain on disposal of fixed assets are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Proceeds from sales 441 992
Net book value (167) -
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 274 992

Gain on disposal of fixed assets is presented as part of “Other Income - Others - Net”. In 2018 and
2017, the Company has written off fixed asset and construction in progress amounting to Rp1,496 and
Rp67, respectively.

In 2018, there was earthquake disaster in one of the Company’s stores which resulting the Company
suffered a loss on fixed assets amounting to Rp1,712 (Note 8). As a result of fire disaster in the
Company'’s stores in 2017, the Company suffered a loss on fixed assets amounting to Rp419 (Note 8).

Land under Building Usage Right (“HGB") status owned by the Company is located in several cities in
Indonesia. These HGBs will expire on various dates from 2019 until 2040 and the Company’s
management believes that these rights can be renewed upon their expiry.

Fair value of land as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are amounting to Rp758,739 and Rp727,093,
which were determined based on the Tax Office’s sale value of tax objects (“NJOP”).

The details of constructions in progress are as follows:

Estimated
Percentage of
Completion from Accumulated Estimated
December 31, 2018 Financial Point of View Costs Completion
Building renovations and
improvements 10-90% 51,320 Year 2019
Store and office equipments 10-90% 18,892 Year 2019
Total 70,212
Estimated
Percentage of
Completion from Accumulated Estimated
December 31, 2017 Financial Point of View Costs Completion
Building renovations and
improvements 10-90% 54,004 Year 2018
Store and office equipments 10-90% 19,175 Year 2018
Total 73,179
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9. FIXED ASSETS - NET (continued)

Fixed assets, except for land and construction in progress, are covered by insurance against losses
from fire, damage, natural disasters, riots and other risks amounting to Rp2,552,152 and Rp2,476,134
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which in the management’s opinion is adequate to

cover possible losses arising from such risks.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s management believes that there is no event or
change in circumstances that may indicate any impairment in value of its fixed assets.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no fixed assets pledged as collateral.

10. LONG-TERM PREPAID RENT

(a) This account represents long-term prepaid rent for several land and spaces for stores and

warehouses. The Company entered into various long-term rental agreements with PT Jakarta
Intiland (“JIL"), a related party, and with third parties for several stores and warehouses spaces
which in general are valid for 5 years. The Company also entered into various long-term land
rental agreements with third parties which are used for store buildings. The land rental agreements
in general are valid for 25 years.

The details of long-term prepaid rent as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Contract value

PT Jakarta Intiland, a related party 298,757 459,228

Third parties 470,111 461,881
Total 768,868 921,109
Less accumulated amortization (261,467) (358,365)
Unamortized portion 507,401 562,744
Less:

Impairment loss (9,000) (9,000)

Current portion (90,579) (101,372
Long-term portion 407,822 452,372

The outstanding balance of long-term prepaid rent with related party amounting to Rp247,001 and
Rp280,085 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, or representing 4.71% and 5.73% of
total assets, respectively (Note 23a).

Total additions of long-term prepaid rent in 2018 and 2017 amounting to Rp59,804 and
Rp129,499, respectively.

Amortization of long-term prepaid rent charged to operations amounting to Rp111,120 in 2018 and
Rp123,156 in 2017 (Note 19).

As of December 31, 2018, store and warehouse long-term rent agreements with JIL cover 41
locations (December 31, 2017: 40 locations). Under these agreements, JIL has given the right to
use the stores and warehouse locations to the Company for a period of 4 to 5 years. As of
December 31, 2018, these agreements will expire at various dates from 2019 until 2029, which
can be renewed for another period to be agreed by both parties. Total additions of long-term
prepaid rent to JIL in 2018 amounting to Rp19,928. In 2017, there was addition of long-term
prepaid rent to JIL amounting to Rp70,860.
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10. LONG-TERM PREPAID RENT (continued)

(b) The Company also have several rental agreements with JIL and third parties which payments were
spread over the rental period and the Company is required to paid security deposit. Total rent
expense for these rental agreements in 2018 and 2017 were amounting to Rp241,499 and
Rp240,569, respectively, including rental with a related party of Rp156,073 and Rp166,517,
respectively, or representing 36.71% and 43.88% of total selling expenses, respectively, are
presented as part of “Selling Expenses - Rent - Net” account in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (Note 19). As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the outstanding
refundable security deposits paid by the Company to JIL amounting to Rp2,905 or representing
0.06% of total assets, are presented as part of “Security Deposits” account in the statement of
financial position (Note 23b).

(c) In 2018, there was earthquake disaster in one of the Company’'s stores which resulting the
Company suffered lossed on long-term prepaid rent amounting to Rp4,026 (Note 8).
11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - TRADE - THIRD PARTIES
This account represents liabilities to suppliers for purchases of merchandise inventories in Rupiah. The
terms of payments for the suppliers are ranging from one (1) month to three (3) months from the date

of purchase.

The Company’s aging analysis of accounts payable - trade - third parties based on due date is as

follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current 552,289 899,199
1 - 2 months 226,278 9,065
More than 2 months 130,767 41,279
Total 909,334 949,543

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there was no collateral provided by the Company for the accounts
payable - trade stated above.

12. TAXATION

Taxes payable consists of:
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Income taxes:

Article 4 (2) 3,705 4,777
Article 21 999 1,149
Article 23 2,137 776
Article 25 4,766 -
Avrticle 26 249 60
Article 29 61,748 11,808
Value Added Tax - net 23,496 30,121
Total 97,100 48,691
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12. TAXATION (continued)

The reconciliation between income before income tax as shown in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and taxable income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

are presented as follows:

Income before income tax as shown in
the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income

Temporary differences:

Depreciation of fixed assets
Provision for liabilities for employee benefits - net
Amortization of prepaid expenses
Amortization of long-term prepaid rent
Permanent differences:
Tax penalties
Donations and entertainment
Business trip
Employee welfare
Others
Income already subjected to final tax:
Interest
Rent

Taxable income

Total income tax expense - current

Income tax expense (benefit) - deferred
Amortization of prepaid long-term rent
Amortization of prepaid expenses
Provision for liabilities for employee benefits - net
Depreciation of fixed assets

Income tax benefit - deferred - net

Income tax expense - net

31

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
717,172 466,592
4,640 6,373
(344) 32,777
(555) 826
(12,591) 2,272
29,012 136
8,648 7,091
2,406 1,492
1,614 7,829
339 404
(107,062) (87,938)
(131,862) (155,558)
511,417 282,296
127,854 70,574
3,148 (568)
139 (207)
86 (8,194)
(1,160) (1,593)
2,213 (10,562)
130,067 60,012
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12. TAXATION (continued)

The Company will report its 2018 Annual Income Tax Return (“SPT") based on the abovementioned
calculation. The Company’'s estimated taxable income for the year ended December 31, 2017 was
consistent with the Annual Income Tax Return as reported to the Tax Office.

The computation of income tax payable - Article 29 are as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Income tax expense - current 127,854 70,574
Prepayments of income taxes:
Article 22 1 6
Article 23 7,012 7,835
Article 25 59,093 50,925
Total 66,106 58,766
Income tax payable - Article 29 61,748 11,808

For the 2018 and 2017 corporate income tax calculation, tax rate applied is 25%.

The reconciliation between income tax computed by using applicable tax rate from income before
income tax, with income tax expense as shown in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Income before income tax as shown in
the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income 717,172 466,592
Income tax expense at applicable tax rate 179,293 116,648
Tax effect of permanent differences:
Tax penalties 7,253 34
Donations and entertainment 2,162 1,773
Business trip 602 373
Employee welfare 404 1,957
Others 85 101
Income already subjected to final tax:
Interest (26,766) (21,985)
Rent (32,966) (38,889)
Income tax expense - net 130,067 60,012
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12.

13.

TAXATION (continued)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2018, and 2017 are as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Deferred tax assets on:

Liabilities for employee benefits 80,622 87,234
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
financial assets 3,678 2,127
Total 84,300 89,361
Deferred tax liabilities on:
Fixed assets (18,762) (19,922)
Long-term rent (12,469) (9,321)
Prepaid expenses (1,720) (1,581)
Total (32,951) (30,824)
Deferred tax assets - net 51,349 58,537

The Company’s management believes that the deferred tax assets can be utilized through its future
taxable income.
ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of :

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Electricity and energy 30,963 22,999
Maintenance and repair 5,853 6,276
Promotion 3,566 1,950
Royalty 1,858 1,084
Rent 1,342 2,914
Store supplies 1,247 3,281
Professional fee 1,150 1,265
Others 9,214 3,759
Total 55,193 43,528
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14. LIABILITIES FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company recognized liabilities for employee benefits as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 based
on actuarial valuations performed by PT Dayamandiri Dharmakonsilindo, an independent actuary,
based on its reports dated March 4, 2019.

The liabilities for employee benefits are calculated using the “Projected Unit Credit” method based on
the following assumptions:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Discount rate 8.30% per year 7.30% per year
Salary increase rate 7% per year 7% per year
Pension age 55 years old 55 years old
Mortality rate TMI 2011 TMI 2011

The benefits expense are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Excess of benefits payments 46,636 27,304
Current service cost 22,363 20,351
Interest cost 21,960 23,439
Adjustment for past services 281 546
Past service cost of curtailment (26,792) -
Total 64,448 71,640

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year 348,937 300,629
Provision of excess benefit payment 46,636 27,304
Current service cost 22,363 20,351
Interest cost 21,960 23,439
Adjustment for past services 281 546
Benefits payments during the year (18,156) (11,560)
Past service cost of curtailment (26,792) -
Excess of benefits payments during the year (46,636) (27,304)
Remeasurement of present value of defined benefit
obligation:

Loss (gain) from experience adjustments 12,382 (20,026)

Loss (gain) from changes in financial assumption (38,488) 35,558
Balance at end of year 322,487 348,937
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14. LIABILITIES FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

The movements in the liabilities for employee benefits for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017 are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year 348,937 300,629
Provision during the year 64,448 71,640
Payment during the year (18,156) (11,560)
Provision of excess benefit payment (46,636) (27,304)
Other comprehensive loss (income) (26,106) 15,532
Balance at end of year 322,487 348,937

Mutation of other comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as

follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year 77,754 62,222
Loss (gain) in current year (26,106) 15,532
Balance at end of year 51,648 77,754

As of December 31, 2018, a one percentage point change in the assumed rate of discount rate would
have the following effects:

Discount rates Future salary increases
Effect on Effect on
present value present value
of benefits of benefits
Percentage obligation Percentage obligation
Increase 1% (25,099) 1% 29,882
Decrease (1%) 28,820 (1%) (26,409)

The following payments are expected contributions to the benefit obligation in future years:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Within the next 12 months 45,649 42,651
Between 1 and 2 years 15,956 12,349
Between 2 and 5 years 53,893 48,911
Beyond 5 years 410,022 523,126
Total 525,520 627,037
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Share Capital

15. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

The shareholders and their share ownership as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

December 31, 2018

Number of
Shares Issued Percentage of
Shareholders and Fully Paid Ownership Amount
PT Ramayana Makmursentosa 3,965,000,000 58.98% 198,250
Paulus Tumewu (President Commissioner) 260,000,000 3.87% 13,000
Agus Makmur (President Director) 258,170,000 3.84% 12,909
Public (below 5% ownership each) 2,239,648,900 33.31% 111,982
Sub-total 6,722,818,900 100.00% 336,141
Treasury shares 373,181,100 18,659
Total 7,096,000,000 354,800
December 31, 2017
Number of
Shares Issued Percentage of
Shareholders and Fully Paid Ownership Amount

PT Ramayana Makmursentosa 3,965,000,000 58.98% 198,250
DB Spore DCS A/C Ntasian Discovery

Master Fund 433,243,600 6.44% 21,662
Agus Makmur (President Director) 302,500,000 4.50% 15,125
Paulus Tumewu (President Commissioner) 260,000,000 3.87% 13,000
Public (below 5% ownership each) 1,762,075,300 26.21% 88,104
Sub-total 6,722,818,900 100.00% 336,141
Treasury shares 373,181,100 18,659
Total 7,096,000,000 354,800

Treasury Shares

Based on Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholders approved among others
the management’s plan to buyback the Company’s outstanding shares with the maximum purchase
amount of Rp400,000, include the transaction cost, broker fee and other costs related to the
Company’'s buyback shares or maximum 567,680,000 shares, or 8% of the Company’s issued and
fully paid shares, gradually until March 15, 2017.

Until 2017, the Company has buy 373,181,100 shares with total acquisition cost amounting to

Rp339,861, which presented in “Treasury Shares” account as deduction to the equity in the statement
of financial position.
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16. RETAINED EARNINGS

17.

18.

In the Annual Shareholder's General Meeting held on May 25, 2018, which were notarized by Deed
No. 6 on the same date of Rianto, S.H., the shareholders approved the declaration of cash dividend of
Rp40 (full amount) per share or in total amount of Rp268,913.

In the Annual Shareholder's General Meeting held on May 16, 2017, which were notarized by Deed
No. 11 on the same date of Rianto, S.H., the shareholders approved the declaration of cash dividend
of Rp36 (full amount) per share or in total amount of Rp242,021.

REVENUES
The details of revenues are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Outright sales 4,805,123 4,786,508
Consignment sales 3,733,611 3,359,349
Cost of consignment sales (2,799,181) (2,523,129)
Commission on consignment sales 934,430 836,220
Total 5,739,553 5,622,728

There were no sales to a customer that exceeded 10% of total revenues in 2018 and 2017.

COST OF OUTRIGHT SALES

The details of cost of outright sales are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Beginning inventories 740,993 834,400
Net purchases 3,351,722 3,317,027
Inventories available for sale 4,092,715 4,151,427
Ending inventories (Note 8) (859,767) (740,993)
Cost of outright sales 3,232,948 3,410,434

There were no purchases from a supplier of the Company that exceeded 10% of total revenues in
2018 and 2017.
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19.

20.

21.

SELLING EXPENSES

The details of selling expenses are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Rent - net (Notes 10a,10b, 23b, 23c, 23d and 24) 222,749 181,929
Promotion 104,065 90,635
Transportation 59,256 62,085
Plastic bags 23,623 25,108
Credit card charges 5,758 7,214
Royalty and travel fees (Note 24) 3,922 4,891
Others 5,798 7,594
Total 425,171 379,456

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The details of general and administrative expenses are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Salaries and employee welfare (Note 14) 620,070 670,210
Electricity and energy 257,691 262,880
Repairs and maintenance (Note 23b) 176,507 154,498
Depreciation (Note 9) 175,362 183,684
Taxes and licenses (Note 12) 72,069 32,763
Jamsostek 29,513 24,659
Supplies 27,001 37,055
Insurance 26,411 26,858
Stationeries and printing 22,905 22,505
Business trips 15,382 14,299
Security 13,000 11,407
Contribution and retribution 11,345 10,607
Others (below Rp10,000 each) 26,356 25,060
Total 1,473,612 1,476,485

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

The details of other income are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Gain on foreign exchange - net 11,120 1,346
Gain on fire disaster - net (Note 8) 5,450 11,422
Others - net 1,851 7,664
Total 18,421 20,432
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21.

22.

23.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES (continued)

The details of other expenses are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Loss from earthquake (Note 8) 14,703 -
Others - net 4,592 1
Total 19,295 1

EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”)
The computation of earnings per share in 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
Income for the year 587,105 406,580
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 6,722,818,900 6,722,818,900
Earnings per share (full amount) 87.33 60.48

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company conducted transactions out of its main business with certain related parties. The details
of the related parties transactions, are as follows:

Percentage to Total Assets

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Other receivables

PT Ramayana Makmursentosa - 13,639 - 0.28
PT Jakarta Intiland 238 - 0.01 -
PT Indonesia Fantasi Sentosa 1,275 3,168 0.02 0.06
Total 1,513 16,807 0.03 0.34
Long-term prepaid rent (Note 10a)

PT Jakarta Intiland (a) 247,001 280,085 4.71 5.73
Security deposits (Note 10b)

PT Jakarta Intiland (b) 2,905 2,905 0.06 0.06
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23. RELATED PARTIES TRAN

SACTIONS (continued)

The details of the related parties transactions, are as follows: (continued)

Rental revenue
PT Ramayana Makmursentosa (c)
PT Indonesia Fantasi Sentosa (d)

Total

Selling expenses - Rent (Note 10b)
PT Jakarta Intiland (b)

General and administrative
expenses - Repairs and
maintenance

PT Jakarta Intiland (b)

*) Percentage to total revenue/selling expenses/general and administrative expenses

Short-term employee benefits
Board of Commissioners
Board of Directors

Sub-total

Long-term employee benefits
Board of Commissioners
Board of Directors

Sub-total

Total

Year Ended December 31,

Percentage to Related
Total Income/Expenses *)

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017
72,582 72,123 1.26 1.28
19,446 13,750 0.34 0.24
92,028 85,873 1.60 1.52

209,085 239,947 49.18 63.23
30,334 15,338 2.06 1.04

Year Ended December 31,

Percentage to
Salaries and Employee’s Welfare

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017
6,943 5,532 112 0.83
5,646 5,126 0.91 0.76

12,589 10,658 2.03 1.59
535 553 0.09 0.08
466 382 0.07 0.06

1,001 935 0.16 0.14
13,590 11,593 2.19 1.73

a. The Company entered into long-term rental agreements for several warehouses and spaces for
stores with PT Jakarta Intiland, a related party, as discussed in Notes 10 and 24. Total net book

value of these long-term prepaid

December 31, 2018 and

2017, respectively.
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23.

24,

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b. The Company also has agreements with PT Jakarta Intiland, a related party, of which the related
rents are payable periodically during the rental periods and the Company has to pay refundable
security deposits, as discussed in Note 10b. The outstanding balance of security deposits
amounting to Rp2,905 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are presented as part of “Security
Deposits” account in the statement of financial position. Total rent expense incurred from these
agreements amounting to Rp209,085 and Rp239,947 in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are
presented as part of “Selling Expenses - Rent - Net” account in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (Note 19). Based on the rent agreements, the Company is required
to pay service charges. Total service charges paid to PT Jakarta Intiland, a related party,
amounting to Rp30,334 and Rp15,338 in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are presented as part
of “Selling Expenses - Repairs and Maintenance” in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (Note 20).

c. The Company entered into several agreements to lease certain store area to PT Ramayana
Makmursentosa. Total rental income from these agreements amounting to Rp72,582 and
Rp72,123 in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are presented as a deduction of rental expense in
selling expenses (Note 19).

d. The Company entered into several agreements to lease certain store area to PT Indonesia Fantasi
Sentosa. Total rental income from these agreements amounting to Rp19,446 and Rp13,750 in
2018 and 2017, respectively, and are presented as a deduction of rental expense in selling
expenses (Note 19).

Details of the nature of relationships and types of material transactions with related parties are as
follows:

No. Related Parties Nature of Relationship Transaction

1 PT Ramayana Makmursentosa Ultimate shareholder of Rent of spaces
the Company

2 PT Jakarta Intiland A member of the same group Rent of store and warehouse and
with the Company service charges

3 PT Indonesia Fantasi Sentosa Under common control Rent of spaces

4 Boards of Commissioners A member of the key management Salaries and employees’ welfare

and Directors personnel of the Company

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS
Rental

The Company entered into various rental agreements with related party and third parties to lease
certain stores area. The rental income from these agreements amounting to Rp129,465 and
Rp175,338 in 2018 and 2017, respectively, are presented as a deduction of rental expense in selling
expenses (Note 19).

License

Since September 1, 2014, the Company and SPAR International B.V., Holand (“SPAR"), a third party,
engaged in a license agreement. Based on this agreement, the Company has the right to use the
name and trademark of SPAR along with the purchasing, warehouse, distribution, marketing and
selling system owned by SPAR. Related to that, the Company has to pay annual royalty fee and all
traveling fee for SPAR’s employees that will be appointed to assist the Company. Royalty and
travelling fees incurred are amounting to Rp3,922 and Rp4,891 in 2018 and 2017, respectively, are
presented as part of selling expenses (Note 19). On September 30, 2018, the Company has terminate
the agreement with SPAR International B.V., Holand.
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25. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following segment information is prepared based on the information used by management in
evaluating the performance of each business segment and in determining the allocation of resources.

Total revenues

Income
Segment income

Unallocated operating
expenses

Income from operations
Finance income
Tax on finance income

Income before income tax
Income tax expense - net

Income for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

Total revenues

Income
Segment income

Unallocated operating
expenses

Income from operations
Finance income
Tax on finance income

Income before income tax
Income tax expense - net

Income for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Java, Bali and Sulawesi
Sumatera Nusa Tenggara Kalimantan and Papua Total Segment
985,244 3,812,896 452,857 488,556 5,739,553
390,954 1,376,271 193,533 241,163 2,201,921
(1,594,973)
606,948
134,701
(24,477)
717,172
(130,067)
587,105
437,278 1,773,397 187,625 155,799 2,554,099
2,688,948
5,243,047
466 3,067 187 22 3,742
1,411,840
1,415,582
6,770 92,106 5,656 3,174 107,706
35,480 232,628 14,876 21,698 304,682
Year Ended December 31, 2017
Java, Bali and Sulawesi
Sumatera Nusa Tenggara Kalimantan and Papua Total Segment
1,081,172 3,622,454 447,210 471,892 5,622,728
402,285 1,159,801 162,262 181,108 1,905,456
(1,528,672)
376,784
109,525
(19,717)
466,592
(60,012)
406,580
440,021 1,735,482 187,078 198,014 2,560,595
2,331,327
4,891,922
597 4,011 187 23 4,818
1,392,759
1,397,577
16,534 101,525 14,910 7,175 140,144
39,542 225,664 13,575 28,057 306,838
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25. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Company determines its business segment based on the products sold consisting of fashion and

accessories and groceries are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2018

Outright sales
Commission on consignment sales
Cost of outright sales

Gross profit

Selling expenses

General and administratives expenses
Other income

Other expenses

Income from operations

Finance income
Tax on finance income

Income before income tax

Year Ended
December 31, 2017

Outright sales
Commission on consignment sales
Cost of outright sales

Gross profit

Selling expenses

General and administratives expenses
Other income

Other expenses

Income (loss) from operations

Finance income
Tax on finance income

Income (loss) before income tax

Fashion

and Accessories Groceries Total Segment
3,213,775 1,591,348 4,805,123
924,015 10,415 934,430
(1,883,273) (1,349,675) (3,232,948)
2,254,517 252,088 2,506,605
(408,100) (17,071) (425,171)
(1,277,178) (196,434) (1,473,612)
17,538 883 18,421
(13,558) (5,737) (19,295)
573,219 33,729 606,948
113,902 20,799 134,701
(20,565) (3,912) (24,477)
666,556 50,616 717,172

Fashion

and Accessories Groceries Total Segment
2,950,199 1,836,309 4,786,508
825,464 10,756 836,220
(1,815,628) (1,594,806) (3,410,434)
1,960,035 252,259 2,212,294
(328,841) (50,615) (379,456)
(1,235,103) (241,382) (1,476,485)
17,917 2,515 20,432
- ) )
414,008 (37,224) 376,784
95,535 13,990 109,525
(17,102) (2,615) (19,717)
492,441 (25,849) 466,592
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26.

27.

MONETARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as follows:

Equivalent in Rupiah

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
United States Dollar (US$9,769,717) 141,476
Time deposits
United States Dollar (US$2,538,228) 36,756
Accounts receivable - others
United States Dollar (US$25,759) 373
Total 178,605
Liabilities
Accounts payable - others
United States Dollar (US$92,663) 1,342
Singapore Dollar (Sin$4,808) 51
Total 1,393
Net monetary assets 177,212

On March 27, 2019, the exchange rates are Rp14,202 (full amount) per US$1 and Rp10,492 (full
amount) per Sin$1.

If the net monetary assets in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2018 are converted to Rupiah
using the exchange rates as of March 27, 2019, the net monetary assets will decrease by
Rp3,415.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
The Company’s main financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, short-
term investments, accounts receivable - trade, accounts receivable - others, certain security deposits,

other non-current assets, accounts payable - trade, accounts payable - others and accrued expenses.

a. Risk Management

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Interest to manage any kind
of risks has been significantly increased by considering the volatility of financial market both, in
Indonesia and international. The Company's senior management oversees the risk management of
these risks.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise two type of risks: interest rate risk
and foreign currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, short-term investments, accounts receivable - others and accounts
payable - others.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

a. Risk Management (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchanges rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates is related primarily to cash and cash equivalents, time deposits,
short-term investments, accounts receivable - others and accounts payable - others which are
denominated in United States Dollar and Singapore Dollar. The Company manages this risk by
placing their investment selectively in financial instruments which provide high return on
investment, so that the fluctuation of foreign exchange rate can be compensated with the return on
investments which are denominated in several foreign currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the Rupiah
exchange rate against foreign currencies, with assumption that all other variables held constant,
the effect to the income before corporate income tax expense is as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Effect on Effect on

Change in Income Before Change in Income Before

Rupiah Rate Tax Expenses Rupiah Rate Tax Expenses

United States Dollar +2% 3,545 +2% 3,256
Singapore Dollar +2% (1) +2% 1)
United States Dollar -2% (3,545) -2% (3,256)
Singapore Dollar -2% 1 -2% 1

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company's financial instruments that have
potential credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, accounts receivable -
trade, accounts receivables - others, certain security deposits and short-term investments. Other
than as disclosed below, the Company has no concentration of credit risk.

Credit risk arising from placements of current accounts and deposits is managed in accordance
with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are limited for each banks or financial
institution and reviewed annually by the Board of Directors. Such limits are set to minimize the
concentration of credit risk and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential failure of the
banks.

At the reporting date, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets presented in the statement of financial position.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

a. Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that occurs when the cash flows position indicates that short-term revenue
is insufficient to cover short-term expenditure.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
marketable securities to enable the Company fulfill the Company’s commitments to support the
Company'’s business activities. In addition, the Company continuously controls the projection and
actual cash flows and also controls the maturity of financial assets and liabilities.

The tables below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual payments as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:

< lyear 1-2years 2 -3years > 3 years Total
As of December 31, 2018
Accounts payable - third parties
Trade 909,334 - - - 909,334
Others 31,468 - - - 31,468
Accrued expenses 55,193 - - - 55,193
Total 995,995 - - - 995,995
<1year 1-2years 2 -3years > 3years Total
As of December 31, 2017
Accounts payable - third parties
Trade 949,543 - - - 949,543
Others 6,878 - - - 6,878
Accrued expenses 43,528 - - - 43,528
Total 999,949 - - - 999,949

The table below summarizes the changes in liabilities arising from financing activity:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Beginning Balance Addition Cash Flow - Net Ending Balance

Cash dividend - 268,913 (268,913)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Beginning Balance Addition Cash Flow - Net Ending Balance

Cash dividend - 242,021 (242,021)
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

b.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

In addition, the Company is also required by the Corporate Law effective August 16, 2007 to
contribute and to maintain a non-distributable reserve fund until the said reserve reaches 20% of
the issued and fully paid share capital. This externally imposed capital requirement is considered
by the Company at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting (‘fAGSM”).

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, issue new shares or raise debt financing. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a healthy capital structure in order to secure access to finance
at a reasonable cost.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair value as follows:

1.

Cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, accounts receivable - trade and accounts receivable -
others.

All of the above financial assets represent current assets which due within twelve (12) months,
thus the carrying values of the financial assets approximate their fair values.

Accounts payable - trade, accounts payable - others and accrued expenses.

All of the above financial liabilities represent current liabilities which due within twelve (12) months,
thus the carrying values of the financial liabilities approximate their fair values.

Security deposits, employee receivables, including their current maturities.
Long-term assets which bear no interest are presented at the net present value of the estimated

future cash receipts or payments using market interest rate available for debt with approximately
similar characteristics.

Short-term investments

Fair value of this financial asset is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques with market
observable inputs.

47



These financial statements are originally issued in the Indonesian language.

PT RAMAYANA LESTARI SENTOSA Tbk
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2018 and for the Year Then Ended
(Expressed in Millions of Rupiah, Unless Otherwise Stated)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair Value Hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurements. The assessment of the significance of a particular input to
the fair value measurements requires judgement, and may affect the valuation of the assets and
liabilities being measured and their placement within the fair value hierarchy.

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial
instrument is not active, an entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of
using a valuation technique is to establish what the transaction price would have been on the
measurement date in an arm's length exchange motivated by normal business considerations.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis.

If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that
technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of
market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that
market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic
methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the Company calibrates the valuation
technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the
same instrument (i.e., without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable
market data.

The Company’s fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

December 31, 2018

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Current asset
Short-term investments 86,068 86,068

December 31, 2017

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Current asset
Short-term investments 127,509 127,509

For the years ended and December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between each level
fair value measurements.
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28.

29.

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table sets out the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company'’s financial

instruments as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,950,775 1,950,775 751,901 751,901
Time deposits 464,656 464,656 1,279,068 1,279,068
Accounts receivable
Trade
Third parties 16,346 16,346 10,046 10,046
Others
Related parties 1,513 1,513 16,807 16,807
Third parties 19,916 19,916 30,269 30,269
Short-term investments 86,068 86,068 127,509 127,509
Security deposits 1,129 1,129 1,379 1,379
Other non-current assets 18,240 16,019 6,990 6,823
Total 2,558,643 2,556,422 2,223,969 2,223,802
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable - third parties
Trade 909,334 909,334 949,543 949,543
Others 31,468 31,468 6,878 6,878
Accrued expenses 55,193 55,193 43,528 43,528
Total 995,995 995,995 999,949 999,949
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Year Ended December 31,
Note 2018 2017
ACTIVITY NOT AFFECTING CASH FLOWS
Increase (decrease) in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets - net 7 (4,651) 4,035

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

On February 15, 2019, the Company has sold its 20,000,000 treasury shares with selling price of

Rp1,775 (full amount) per share totalling to Rp35,500 and resulted a gain of Rp17,283.
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